


Contents

H &k

Corporate Information 2 &) & ¥} 2-3
Chairman’s Statement &2 Ji #it & 4-13
Major Awards of the Year 4 Ji§ 2 B 48 JF 14-16
Management Discussion and Analysis & 8 Jig &} i 5 43 A 17-19
Report of the Directors # % & i & 20-34
Corporate Governance Report £ 3 % ¥4 #t 5 35-49
Independent Auditors’ Report % 37 4% 8 il #z 5 50-51
Audited Financial Statements %8 % 1% W # #t i
Consolidated # 6 :

Statement of Profit or Loss ## & 52

Statement of Comprehensive Income 4 [ ¥ i 3 53

Statement of Financial Position B4 % ik ¥t 3 54-55

Statement of Changes in Equity # £ 5 B 3& 56-57

Statement of Cash Flows Bl & i & & 58-60
Company A # :

Statement of Financial Position B4 % ik ¥t 3 61
Notes to Financial Statements % #t 4 fff 5% 62-171
Particulars of Property # 37 1% 172

=R - W OE O Hoe W OW O AW A A



Corporate Information

&\ &R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS WG

Executive Directors Py e

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman) WY (FE)

WU Mei Yung, Quinly (Managing Director) WIS (HH A APE)
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis KA

YIP Wai Keung B fat 18

WU Wing Biu KRR

NAM Chi Ming, Gibson [y

Independent Non-executive Directors LRE R T
LEUNG Mei Han BRI

CHAN Yuk Sang, Peter B A=

Tsunao KIJIMA UNCEL
COMPANY SECRETARY VSTL s

NAM Chi Ming, Gibson B
AUDITORS B Y bl

Ernst & Young K € i 2 % B
PLACE OF INCORPORATION sk ) S i
Cayman Islands B2 E
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR B0 3 Z/ig JER LY
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Caledonian Trust (Cayman) Limited Caledonian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Caledonian House Caledonian House

69 Dr. Roy’s Drive 69 Dr. Roy’s Drive

P.O. Box 1043 KY1-1102 P.O. Box 1043 KY1-1102
George Town George Town

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE W B Oy 8 5 8 4 iR
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited AR B R A ]
Level 22, Hopewell Centre i

183 Queen’s Road East B KEHR1835

Hong Kong B 221

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Corporate Information

IR

REGISTERED OFFICE

Caledonian House

69 Dr. Roy’s Drive

P.O. Box 1043 KY1-1102
George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Four Seas Group Building
No. 1 Hong Ting Road
Sai Kung

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Mizuho Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Citibank, N.A.

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.fourseasgroup.com.hk

wk: i 24 25

Caledonian House

69 Dr. Roy’s Drive

P.O. Box 1043 KY1-1102
George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

LR ER L Y ]

e

VEE

B E B 19

VY PN 45 K B

TR AT

=2 BOCUFTERAT
SHELBRAT

T R ARAT A A ]

Tl v i AR AT A PR A T
o SR AT () B BRA
A ELERAT A PR A
AEHEER1T
WITHAT (T ) AR A A
T HE PSR AT

A SR AT A PR 2
HRATH R A
BEEAT (FH) BHRAF

A 1k

http://www.fourseasgroup.com.hk

SO R e WOW K OB A R A

4B

7



Chairman’s Statement
B &

Dear Shareholders,

“Reaching new heights of success and excellence” was the best
description of the performance of the Group over the past year. During
the year, the Group achieved continued success owing to its unique
business strategies, cautious cost control, positive market environment
and strong brand advantages.

RESULTS

In the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group’s
profit achieved a substantial growth. The Group’s sales reached
HK$2,910,406,000 (2013: HK$2,899,647,000), representing an
increase of about ten million Hong Kong dollars over the same period
of last year. The profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company increased significantly by 45% to HK$160,137,000 (2013:
HK$110,779,000).

Sales for both Hong Kong and Mainland China were steady.
During the year under review, the sales derived from Hong Kong
was HK$1,920,248,000 (2013: HK$1,901,473,000), representing
an increase of about nineteen million Hong Kong dollars over
the same period of last year and the sales in Mainland China was
HK$990,158,000 (2013: HK$998,174,000).

Japanese yen is one of the transaction currencies for the purchases
of the Group. The purchasing costs of the Group was reduced
with the benefit of the depreciation of Japanese yen resulting in
an improvement of gross profit margin. Gross profit increased
by HK$109,476,000 from HK$885,627,000 of last year to
HK$995,103,000 for the year under review. Gross profit as a
percentage of sales amount improved from 31% of last year to 34% for
the year.
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Chairman’s Statement

B

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, market competition in the food business
remained stiff, but the Group was able to achieve significant growth
in profitability. Reduction in the purchasing cost helped the Group’s
bottom line while its unique business model also put it in a very
advantageous position. Building on its extensive manufacturing,
agency and distribution network as well as well-established customer
base, the Group continued to create synergistic values for various

brand names under its umbrella.

Consistent efforts in the past 43 years to produce safe, delicious and
quality food, as well as emphasizing food hygiene, food safety and
quality food ingredients, have made the Group a famous food brand
in Hong Kong. In order to live by its motto “Eating Safely, Eating
Happily”, the Group seeks to ensure that all food produced, distributed
and sold have undergone stringent internal food control system,

making sure that every necessary procedure is fulfilled.

The Group now produces and distributes a wide range of food
products, serving different customers in terms of ages and segments. It
has a strong distribution network, including supermarkets, convenient
store chains, department stores, fast food chains, wholesalers, retailers,
restaurants, hotels, bars and airlines. In Hong Kong, the Group has
opened over 90 chain stores, including “Okashi Land” specialty stores
with about 60 outlets and the newly-introduced Japanese cookie store
“YOKU MOKU”.
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Chairman’s Statement
E &

Distribution Business

Food distribution business has long been the core business of the
Group. It has been developed steadily over the years. Currently, the
Group distributes food of internationally renowned brands from many
countries, such as Japan, Mainland China, Korea, Malaysia, Singapore,
the United States and Europe. A great variety of products is provided
to suit the demands of different customers, including milk powder,
snacks, health foods, wine, beverages, sauce, seasonings, ham and
sausages. The Group has a comprehensive distribution network and
superb sales teams. With its well-established international connections,

the Group brings in high-quality food products from overseas.

Manufacturing Business

The Group has a total of 20 manufacturing plants in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. With stringent quality control and sophisticated
management system, the Group is able to produce and market a
wide variety of food products, meeting different customer demands,
through its one-stop business platform. Over the years, the Group’s
food products have been highly regarded for their compliance with
various international standards. The Group also gained a vote of trust
and confidence in the market, receiving numerous accreditations
from relevant international institutions including “GMP”, “HACCP”,
“ISO 90017, “ISO 22000” and “Hong Kong Q-Mark Product Scheme
Certification”.

Retailing and Catering Businesses

The retail network of the Group was expanding with well-known
specialty stores opened all over Hong Kong. The Group’s catering
businesses, including Japanese-style “Restaurant Shiki”, “Kung
Tak Lam Shanghai Vegetarian Cuisine”, Japanese fast food shop
“Osaka Ohsho”, “Panxi Restaurant” in Guangzhou, sushi restaurant
chain “Sushi Oh” as well as “Mori Café”, have achieved satisfactory
performance in general. With perfect ambience and superior
management, the Group has developed strong brand equity, creating a
new trend of food and catering businesses in Hong Kong and Mainland
China.
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Chairman’s Statement
E &

BRAND DEVELOPMENT

Based in Hong Kong, the Group was established in 1971, nurturing
and growing together with the city. At the early stage of development,
the Group mainly focused on food distribution business. After 43 years
of running, it has now become one of the largest food enterprises in
Hong Kong, a conglomerate offering food manufacturing, distribution

and catering businesses.

Now the Group has entered into a new stage of development. Apart
from pursuing business growth, it will devote effort to build its long-
term brand image, as well as expanding into the market of Mainland
China, serving as a bridge between China and the world. It will not
only introduce good quality food to the mainland market, bringing in
more choices and enjoyment, but also take mainland food products to

the international arena, helping them to expand overseas.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is participating actively in community services, supporting
the charity activities and youth programs. “Taken from Society and
Give Back to Society” is always the belief of the Group, driving it to
devote tremendous resources to promote the well-being of the society.

The Group has been accredited with various awards last year,
including “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise 2013, “Manpower
Developer 2013-15", “The Best Partnership 2012”, “Listed Company
with the Best Brand Value” and “Most Influential Listed Company
Leader” of The China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards, “Most
Innovative Chiu Chow Businessmen Enterprise Award 2012-2013”
and “Worldwide Prominent Chiu Chow Business Leader Award 2012-
2013” of TXCS Economic Conference 2013. Moreover, the Group’s
distribution and manufacturing businesses also received numerous
awards, including “Most Popular Snack Series” of “2013 Health
& Beauty Awards”, “Most Popular Canned Coffee”, “Outstanding
Category Performance Award — Kid’s Favourite Brand Award” of
“The 14th Wellcome Favourite Brands Awards”. Certain operations
of the retailing and catering businesses were recommended by “Most
Popular Hong Kong & Macau Brands Awards” and “The MICHELIN
Guide — Hong Kong & Macau 2014”.
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Chairman’s Statement
B &

These awards are definitely strong affirmations to the Group’s
involvement in community services, encouraging it to quest for

excellence in developing the local and Mainland China market.

PROSPECTS AND GROWTH

“Catering for Hong Kong’s needs while contributing to the country” is
the Group’s future development strategy. In pursuing its market share
in Hong Kong food industry, the Group is also committed to building a

food and snacks kingdom in Mainland China.

Business in Hong Kong

In the ever-changing competitive environment in Hong Kong, the
Group will continue to strengthen and enhance its leading position.
Snacks have already been a part of the living habit of Hong Kong
people. While snacks stores in different scales are popular in the city,
the local snacks market is filled with great business potentials. The
Group will therefore continue to dedicate itself to market exploration,
taking initiatives to promote diversified products to Hong Kong

people.

After introducing popular Japanese cookie store “YOKU MOKU”
to Hong Kong, the Group will keep on identifying superior snack
products from around the world and bring them to the city in order
to provide more quality food to consumers and proactively expand
market share. Besides, the Group will also expand its distribution
network, making available its products to different customers through

various channels.

Business in Mainland China

With a market size of approximately 7 million, Hong Kong has
contributed approximately 66% of the Group’s business. With a
population of 1.3 billion, Mainland China represents an enormous
business opportunity to the Group. China is now boosting internal
consumptions. As a result, it will lead to higher income and living
standard as well as stronger demand for quality and safety food from
the people. Such development is in line with the Group’s mission and
values, which is also consistent with the Group’s business strategy to
fill the needs of the mainland.
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Hence, introducing quality and safety food products to the mainland
is currently a major focus of the Group’s business strategy. It has
already set its priority in Guangdong with over 100 million population
as a base to gradually increase its market share in the country. The
Group is now conducting extensive staff training, hoping to step up
its presence in the food market in the Pearl River Delta. With the
adoption of the “selective two-child policy”, the demand of baby milk
powder will increase. The Group has already entered into the mainland
milk powder market, making the Guangdong province as the starting
point to expand the Group’s sales network. Besides, the Group also
seized the opportunity to develop Eastern Guangdong by establishing
the Four Seas Food Wholesale Centre in Shantou, inducing the
wholesalers in Guangdong province to purchase Four Seas brand
products there in order to develop a sustainable business model.
Furthermore, with a view to striving for better results, the Group
is planning to further introduce its brand and products to different
mainland cities by phases through expansion of its sales network and

deepening its penetration in the mainland market.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors, I express our most sincere
gratitude to the management team and all staff for their efforts
and contribution made to the Group. I would also like to take this
opportunity to thank all shareholders and business partners for their

confidence and continuous support to the Group.

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBS, SBS, JP

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Major Awards of the Year
R

AFERBEBREZ AR REE
Continuous recognition & awards recewed during this year

MNERAEZEBESERENRRERE 2 — RERBUERAZHNZES
BREm AHOTEEBPEAMBERME  FFEEREY  ERNH/X
MEBRNEE MM -

Four Seas Group is one of the leading food enterprises in Hong
Kong, distributing various kinds of renowned food brands from around
the world. The Group has been developing its own premium brand
successfully, and has been highly recognised and accredited with
various awards this year.

AEEFFAEEELRELUTRIA

The following awards are granted to our Group’s Chairman, Dr. Stephen Tai:

%8,/ E¥ RS TAEMAT
Award/Recognition Organizer
TEMESR mEARANEEBBHTHERF
Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China
REMESR mEARANEEBBATHERR
Silver Bauhinia Star (SBS) The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China
DREHEER PHERYE  ERRERFRDL  PE2ERAZEHSE  TEEARE
FREZEEHATH
(EMAM)  EEAYKE AMAMAHNEBNFE
EmZR2EREEMAREBLE hERMZEEFS
Honorary Certificate of “Distinguished Management Entrepreneur” China Food Safety Annual Conference
EREENmBFEANKE BRAERMATEEERPOES \él[ﬁﬁ\%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘¢ﬁﬁ@
Asia Brand Year Personality Award BREHE  PECEBHLRTEE II‘” EERMAOLRE B
ERELZA o YEZEAR DIRENE AER B UM i R4
011HACEALRERALEANE EREARMABRHBLAZREREHERR
DNREtAERER DN@mEHE @ﬁﬂﬁWH ¢Hk“@%ﬁ@a DNEERSE  BX
Top 10 Business Leader of Asia Brand BYZED I*“E"i&ﬂ#ﬁ?ﬁ EFRBIRZELEEENRY R “E;“" GEGY
BEERS RSB TS
201220132 AL BB AME N1I3FATHHLEES
Wolrdwide Prominent Chiu Chow Business Leader Award 2012-2013 TXCS Economic Conference 2013
TEESEEAR[GAREN LR AAEME] EEXADNEUSURLTAAHE  LENRDAARAEREADERSE
“Most Influential Listed Company Leader” of HEERMREBESRBENEEERLF £
The China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards
-y 5 — »
N/ b
-y e
s gl
- g/
o B2
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Award/Recognition

BRREEE
Caring Company Award

BEAFSH01
The Best Partnership 2013
ERELKERME

Hong Kong Famous Brand

AT EEEFH2 AT £ E2013-2015] 7
“Manpower Developer 2013-2015" of Manpower
Developer Award Scheme

01220135 L EMBHLEH

Most Innovative Chiu Chow Businessmen Enterprise
Award 2012-2013
HEESEEHR [ RAREREL AR

“Listed Company with the Best Brand Value” of The
China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards

B 220013

Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises 2013
BB A R#014

Most Valuable Services Awards in Hong Kong 2014
ISO01EEERRAD®

1509001 Quality Management System Certificate
150220008 M 2 EREADE

15022000 Food Safety Management System Certificate
BREEE

Caring Company Award

AT REEFHE 2 AT £ E2011-2015) 87
“Manpower Developer 2011-2015" of Manpower
Developer Award Scheme

GMPRFE(FRERE

GMP Certificate
HACCPBE AT R B EHE R AR

HACCP Cerificate

150220008 w22 EER AR

18022000 Food Safety Management System Certificate
[BEREREIATEF

“QTS Merchant” of the Quality Tourism Services Scheme
[XSEERER/ AFu RN -2 EE
Highly recommended by “Michelin Guide Hong Kong
Macau 2014".

BRRER

Caring Company Award

BREREEL

The Most Popular Hong Kong and Macau Brand
[BERERSIZTHR

“QTS Merchant” of the Quality Tourism Services Scheme
BERABELEN

Hong Kong's Most Valuable Companies 2014

B XAEZ[GRENERZAT

“Most Popular Snack Series” of Health & Beauty Awards
FEARERNG

“Most Popular Canned Coffee” of TVB Weekly Brands
Award

B ERES 2 L ERER

“Outstanding Category Performance Award” of the
Favourite Brands Awards

SHEEAE

Kam Fan Awards

N125EEEAREAR
2012 7-Eleven Top Brands Campaign Award

B LIS (TOPH)
Hong Kong Top Brand Mark (Top Mark)

BREQEREERAE
Hong Kong Q-Mark Licence

BREN/HE
Awardees
LY

Four Seas Group
Ly

Four Seas Group
miH%

Four Seas Group

miHER
Four Seas Group

mHEE
Four Seas Group

mifsE
Four Seas Group

Wl EE

Four Seas Group

LpEL]

Four Seas Group

BNkR &R (L) BRAR
CFSS Company Limited
B R =R (1B ERAR
CFSS Company Limited
FARMHERLA

Calbee Four Seas Company Limited
B ERAH

Calbee Four Seas Company Limited

FEBMNER AR
Calbee Four Seas Company Limited
FEBOHARA A
Calbee Four Seas Company Limited
FEBOABRARA
Calbee Four Seas Company Limited

HENLEER

Kung Tak Lam Shanghai Vegetarian Cuisine

DENLEER

Kung Tak Lam Shanghai Vegetarian Cuisine

IR
Okashi Land
ZRME
Okashi Land
IRUE
Okashi Land
ZaNE
Okashi Land
LY
Four Seas Seaweed
LYiEY-3E

Four Seas Premium Blend Coffee

BER&X
Lotte Japan

FEBER
Calbee Chips

EWES
Glico

SR
Maid Brand

SHRAR
Maid Ham

MO EF REARRESHXER -

Certain recognition/awards are only provided with official Chinese name.

Major Awards of the Year

Eage

Organizer

B EREHE

Hong Kong Council of Social Services

7-Eleven@
7-Eleven Convenience Store

B A2ARER R

Tencent Guangdong Network GD.QQ.COM/
FASHION/HK and the Nanfang Media Group

EEESEIR
Employees Retraining Board

WIFATERLETE
TXCS Economic Conference 2013

ADH
Ta Kung Pao

258
Economic Digest

Mediazone Publishing

PEEREAL

China Qualty Certification Centre
HEEETAL

China Quality Certification Centre
BRELEREES

Hong Kong Council of Social Services
[EERE]

Employees Retraining Board

EEBRANE

SGS Hong Kong Limited
BRERLR

SGS Hong Kong Limited
BEERLE

SGS Hong Kong Limited
ERFERRA

Hong Kong Tourism Board

RIEER
Michelin Guide

FRHERREE

Hong Kong Council of Social Services
TEER

China Media

ERERRR

Hong Kong Tourism Board
Mediazone Publishing

EEL]
Mannings China

VB
TVB Weekly

ZERAT S
Wellcome Supermarket

BEEEDE

The Association of Accredited Advertising

Agencies of Hong Kong

7-Eleven@ %
7-Eleven Convenignce Store

ERRRRRRREACERERAE

Hong Kong Brand Development Council and
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of

Hong Kong
ERIZHE
The Federation of Hong Kong Industries

¥ A IH

Pl

- -
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Rung Tak Lam Shangfiai Vegetarian Cuisine

MMSEEE NRERZIEM -
DEABRNEZLBRFERE
ZERBIEREHMIBRAEMAL
DRERMEBBEISEM -
ERFFADIRFE ~- FHER
A8 BBV RRA

AFHE DRI -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

O PR W) M o Bt
S 5 4

Year ended 31 March Change
BRE3IH3H L4 I+ 491 ke
2014 2013
SE g %Sk
HK$’000 HK$°000 (%)
BT BT T
Key items of consolidated TEEAHREREH
statement of profit or loss
Revenue LN 2,910,406 2,899,647 +0.4
Gross profit B 995,103 885,627 +12.4
EBITDA" REHFIE ~ Bradsl ~ 78
T ik 3 T 6 ) A 257,036 205,166 +25.3
Profit attributable to equity 555 JE 7 A 2 R W 2 P A ¥
holders of the Company 160,137 110,779 +44.6

A EBITDA refers to earnings before interest, income tax,
depreciation and amortisation (excluding share of profits and

losses of associates)

The Group has achieved a growth in profitability for the year under
review. During the year, revenue of the Group has increased by
HK$10,759,000 to HK$2,910,406,000. Gross profit as a percentage of
the revenue has increased from 30.5% in the previous year to 34.2%
in the year. This has contributed to the increase of gross profit from
HK$885,627,000 in the previous year to HK$995,103,000 in the year,
representing an increase of HK$109,476,000 which is equivalent to
an increase of 12.4%. The increase in the gross profit was attributable
to the depreciation in Japanese yen which is one of the major
currencies for the purchase of imported items for the Group. With the
improvement of gross profit, EBITDA and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company also witnessed encouraging growth of 25.3%
and 44.6%, respectively, even with higher base figures inherited from
the rapid growth of profitability in the last year.

A REHRLE S BB - O EE CHR W N A (R B
075 M AN Yo 5 2 ) v A e g 1)

B2 [ [l A B 9 AE R O TSGR o AR 0 AR
£ Z e A L F+10,759,000% It %2,910,406,000%5
JC o BRI B A Z LBl B 2547 230.5% kI AL
Z34.2% » i it B Z B F 4 %l 2 4R 2.885,627,000
ot k= A 4E 2995,103,000% 50 - 5 B B FH
109,476,000% JC > 8 X4 EF12.4% - BF 2 L
Tt R 2 H B Z B2 A6 1 52 2 > WP H 2 A SR T
PR M 2 —THE R - P B
ARFFR R ~ FRARBL ~ P I B B T R A % B e R AR
AFIRERS PR A IR B NS TR - Bl
R 7 40 B A b A BRSO > I8 43 B 8 A5 b
F+25.3% R 44.6% 2 SR 5 o

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O B W & g Bt

During the year, revenue of the Group has increased by HK$10,759,000
as compared with the previous year. Sales revenue of the major items

TAAEN > 45 IS B4R B8R 10,759,000 08 © &
BEMZWAIT

are:

Year ended 31 March Change
BE3H31H L4 i 399 e

2014 2013

e S i R =g
HK$°000 HK$°000 (%)

BT BT
Snack NE 1,134,055 1,121,713 +1.1
Confectionery R 494,424 488,756 +1.2
Ham and sausage K bR K 7 B 351,633 334,520 +5.1
Beverage and dairy products OB B LA 321,444 310,442 +3.5
Food materials/ingredients 5B TR 237,647 235,905 +0.7

Sales of the major items of the Group have been steady during the
year. Snack items continue to be the major items carried by the Group.
The high quality of snack items, such as potato chips, prawn crackers
and corn sticks, sold by the Group has made them continue to be hot

selling items in the markets of both Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Confectionery items carried by the Group has also recorded steady
sales during the year. “YOKU MOKU”, a famous Japanese cookie
souvenir brand carried by the Group, made its first presence in Hong
Kong since December 2013 and has received good market response.
It becomes trendy in Hong Kong now to buy confectionery gift boxes
during festive seasons which contributes to supporting the sales of

confectionery items of the Group.

Ham and sausage items are mostly sold under “Maid” brand by the
Group. Ham and sausage items of the Group recorded a growth of
5.1% during the year. The high quality attribute of “Maid” brand items
has made them well-received by the consumers which is reflected in
the steady growth of these items throughout the years in the past.

Beverage and dairy products of the Group has recorded a growth of
3.5% during the year. The Group has entered into the mainland milk
powder market during the year with Guangdong Province as the take
off area. With the increasing demand for high and safe dairy products
for the markets in both Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Group

will put effort to address the market opportunity.
Food materials/ingredients business of the Group has been steady

during the year. Major customers of the business continue to be

restaurants, bakery and various kinds of food manufacturing plants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital, liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities granted by its principal bankers. As at 31 March
2014, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of HK$745,823,000. As
at 31 March 2014, the Group had banking facilities of approximately
HK$2,312,119,000, of which 36% had been utilised. The Group had a
gearing ratio of 63% as at 31 March 2014. This is expressed as the total
bank borrowings to equity attributable to equity holders of the Company.
Bank borrowings of the Group, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Japanese yen, Renminbi and United States dollars, mainly comprise trust
receipt loans and bank loans (the “Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings™) at
prevailing market interest rates. The Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings
which are classified as current liabilities are repayable on demand or
within one year and the Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings in non-current

liabilities are repayable in the second to third years.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not pledge any assets and had no
significant contingent liabilities.

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments in respect of property, plant and
equipment which were contracted but not provided for in the financial
statements of HK$7,989,000 as at 31 March 2014.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly from sales
and purchases transactions in Japanese yen and Renminbi. The
appreciation or devaluation of Japanese yen or Renminbi against Hong

Kong dollar may have impact on the Group’s operating results.

The Group’s foreign exchange position is monitored on an ongoing
basis in order to minimise the impact from the unfavourable
fluctuation of foreign currencies. The Group currently does not
maintain a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Staff employment and remuneration policies

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 March 2014 was
approximately 4,200. Remuneration packages are generally structured
by reference to market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed annually based on performance

appraisals and other relevant factors.

O PR W) M o Bt
VA~ 950

A 45 [ — g DL P9 R B B A M R AR R SRAT R
MZEEEREEZME R _F—-NE=AH
St —H o AREEBEAZHE RIS SHEEA R
745,823,000% 70 c R _F—WE=ZH=+—H > &K
£ B AT B IE £92,312,119,0009% 56 » H
36% M CHH - REBP _F—NE=A=1—H
ZHABMEAR R E63% » 5 B SRAT A sk A B AR 2
] BE 25 BT A AL R 25 2 B o AN 4R ] 2 SRAT i K
PUWwoc~ HIE - ANRWRETLCHAETEN > B FRE
T WU H WRIBAT T 3y B R AR R R Bk B R AT B
R (THEMAMAR B ZWATEK]) - 2B LRB AR
Z BT Z SRAT B R 2 e B R R A — 4 A
AR o T 43 R0 R FE U B B AR X ZE AT R R 2 SR AT Bk
THNGE AR B S AEAR o

RE 7 4K 10 B o AR £ 4

PR -WEZA = H o AR AT 8
U N R

YA TR IS

NR_B—NE=ZH=+—H » KEFERWE - BE
Bk i 2 O RT #4H ARG I 7 i i AR
7,989,000 JC ©

A BE L, B

ACHR [ 2 32 By £ W L B R A DL H B R N RO
TTZHBRZ S o HEBA R 560 THE gz 5 7]
BB A AR ) 2 A8 S U U B

AC SR 0 A B R AN R DL > DA AN R Z S0 e Bl
B A o ACHR [ B IR 3 S A 5 A1 B BOR -
SR > A P g B % O R DL B o SIS AE A T 2R R S
3t 3 L KA L B o
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Report of the Directors
o H

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 52 to 171.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per share was paid by the
Company on 16 January 2014. The directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per share in respect of the year to
shareholders on the register of members on 8 September 2014. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the

statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group

Report of the Directors

S8 5 26 e 1B 2%
A5 8 2 A A 2 38 2 R

E R

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited O A R 28 38 4% B4 B S i A P W > SR R 5 B

financial statements, is set out below: e
Year ended 31 March
BEZH=1—HIL4EE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
SR RS DR DR SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T W oC BT o BT T
RESULTS B3
REVENUE WA 2,910,406 2,899,647 2,789,334 2,561,847 2,347,582
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A N iz A 152,280 107,203 43,787 72,733 83,319
Attributable to: BB .
Equity holders of the AR ) I 2
Company K 160,137 110,779 52,581 72,324 86,440
Non-controlling interests I 4 B WE 25 (7,857) (3,576) (8,794) 409 (3,121)
152,280 107,203 43,787 72,733 83,319
As at 31 March
R=H=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
RPN R SR T ZF—E ZEFF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T BT BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES %@ & £ 1%
TOTAL ASSETS MG RE 2,589,950 2,465,385 2,425,843 2,362,492 2,163,798
TOTAL LIABILITIES R R (1,231,265)  (1,236,643)  (1,290,006)  (1,242,763)  (1,142,127)
1,358,685 1,228,742 1,135,837 1,119,729 1,021,671

The information set out above does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

E R

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and an
investment property of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of

the Group’s investment property are set out on page 172.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or

issued share capital during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 32(b) to the financial statements and

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$301,145,000,
of which HK$23,275,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the

year.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting

period are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:
Executive directors:

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)

WU Mei Yung, Quinly (Managing Director)
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis

YIP Wai Keung

WU Wing Biu

NAM Chi Ming, Gibson

Independent non-executive directors:

LEUNG Mei Han
CHAN Yuk Sang, Peter
Tsunao KIJIMA

In accordance with article 119 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, Peter
and Mr. Tsunao Kijima shall retire and being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Ms. Leung Mei Han, Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, Peter and Mr. Tsunao
Kijima pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors
o H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ remuneration is determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group, and reviewed by
the remuneration committee of the Group. Particulars of the duties
and responsibilities of the remuneration committee are set out in

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix

10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

o 5

R AT A AR R A T e - I
FRRBIVL R A P S A - 3 ph AR T T &%
Bty o # % B & 2 W R ST R AR
RAER [ R H WA A

AR R A A

FRAEE P » 5T 16 B A 24 ) g B I G 24+
T S A S A S T 2 TR 2 A 40 o
B AT 2 25

T

R
P fit

T
N
=E

RER-MEZA=Z4—H o KAFESR R EET
BN B A 2 7 sl AT Ao A 0 9 T (O 9 S o
W (8 2% TR R ) SEXVER) Z B fr e
B e A v o B AR R R o B B AR A9 5 3 520 LS B
8 Z B At P e 8% o SR 8 b i A BB Bk 10 B i
Z LT g AT N S AT R 2R A2 S WA AT B ([
SR D) 2R 0 A T B M A i Z B AR BORT AN T :

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company: RARAFSBIR®RH 2 :
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares the Company’s
held/interested issued share capital
Notes W% By A v B AT
Name of director HHAR W Capacity 201 ¥4/ WA %A JBEACHE & 2 T
Tai Tak Fung, Stephen W (1) Interest of controlled el o v BE 25 259,478,000 66.89%
corporations
Wu Mei Yung, Quinly LB (ii) Interest of spouse and TR AR i 23 T 259,478,000 66.89%
interest of controlled Pe il 2w RE S
corporations
Yip Wai Keung B Beneficial owner WA A 680,000 0.17%

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Notes:

()

(i)

Such shares comprise:

(a)

(b)

(c)

70,000,000 shares, representing 18.05% of the Company’s
issued share capital, are held by Careful Guide Limited
(“CGL”) which is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung,
Stephen;

74,250,000 shares, representing 19.14% of the Company’s
issued share capital, are owned by Special Access Limited
(“SAL”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung,
Stephen, and his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly.
Accordingly, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and Ms. Wu Mei
Yung, Quinly are deemed to be interested in the 74,250,000
shares held by SAL; and

115,228,000 shares, representing 29.70% of the Company’s
issued share capital, are owned by Capital Season Investments
Limited (“CSI”). CSI is wholly owned by Advance Finance
Investments Limited (“AFI”), which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited
(“HKFH”). Accordingly, HKFH is deemed to be interested
in 115,228,000 shares in the Company. HKFH is owned as to
0.07% by the Company, 2.59% by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen,
20.38% by SAL, and as to 11.91% by CGL. As Ms. Wu Mei
Yung, Quinly is the spouse of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen,
Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly is deemed to be interested in the
shares of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and vice versa. Therefore,
Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, and his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei
Yung, Quinly are considered to have deemed interests in the
115,228,000 shares of the Company by virtue of their interests
in HKFH.

As mentioned in note (i)(b) above, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly and her
spouse, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen are deemed to be interested in the
74,250,000 shares held by SAL. In addition to the deemed interests
of 115,228,000 shares in the Company’s issued share capital as stated
in note (i)(c) above, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly is also deemed to be
interested in the 70,000,000 shares through the interests of her spouse,
Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, in CGL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short

positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of

its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company (including their spouse and children under

18 years of age) had been granted or exercised, any rights to subscribe

for shares in the Company required to be disclosed pursuant to the

SFO.
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o H

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any of the directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors

to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2014, the following parties (other than the directors
and chief executive of the Company as disclosed above) had interests
of 5% or more in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company:

o g0 0 By e A O Z HE R

B B SCHERE S > SE N o A R TR A
FEAER B Z LB R AR Z 2 DU I O A
ON ) 22 ARy B A 2 G M R 25 B AT O % SRR 5 A
VNGNS cY AN R G R LN A EAHES ) PN
] A BT S AT A 2 B DL B o S AT (] At 3 N
B %R -

BREF-NEZA=Z+—H P AL (B30 #%
B2 AN B R F AT B BRAN) R AR A R
1% 8 75 I B R 9] 56 33 6Mk 2 WL RE BT H AR L 2 B i
Tk i 5 % A A 2> W) B4 5 %o DA b 2 B2

TR AR 2 i 3 B B Ay 2 5 Y

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary the Company’s
shares held/ issued
interested share capital
iR
Name of substantial Notes Y B CE RA
shareholder TEERAR [ Capacity Sh /WA UH SR
SAL Beneficial owner | -5 2UN 74,250,000 19.14%
CGL Beneficial owner L E2 LN 70,000,000 18.05%
CsI Beneficial owner £ DN 115,228,000 29.70%
AFI ) Interest of controlled el A v MR 115,228,000 29.70%
corporation
HKFH s B fl (i) Interest of controlled Y] 24 7 H A 115,228,000 29.70%
corporation
Value Partners Group EHEEAMAR (i1) Interest of controlled 2 )R 45 24,637,600 6.35%
Limited (“VPG”) ([HEHEME ] corporation
Cheah Capital Management (i) (iid) Interest of controlled el A 7 B 25 24,637,600 6.35%
Limited (“CCM”) corporation
Cheah Company (i) Interest of controlled Pt 2 v HE A 24,637,600 6.35%
Limited (“CCL”) corporation
Hang Seng Bank Trustee {4 AT 15 RE B (ii1) Trustee ZitA 24,637,600 6.35%
International Limited HRAF
(“HSBT”) (M A ATt )
Cheah Cheng Hye By (ii) (iii) ~ Founder of a 2HERFFEAIA 24,637,600 6.35%
discretionary trust
To Hau Yin IRGECY (iv) Interest of spouse Tic A8 5 24,637,600 6.35%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

@) The entire issued share capital of CSI is held by AFI which in turn
is wholly owned by HKFH. Accordingly, each of AFI and HKFH
is deemed to be interested in the same 115,228,000 shares of the
Company held by CSI.

(i1) Value Partners Limited (“VPL”) is wholly owned by Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited (“VPHKL”) and holds the 24,637,600 shares of
the Company. VPHKL is wholly owned by VPG, which in turn is
28.47% owned by CCM.

(iii) CCM is wholly owned by CCL, which in turn is wholly owned by
HSBT as trustee of a discretionary trust and Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye is
a founder of the said discretionary trust. Accordingly, each of VPHKL,
VPG, CCM, CCL, HSBT and Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye is deemed to be
interested in the 24,637,600 shares held by VPL.

The Company had been notified that, as at 12 May 2014, HSBT ceased
to have an interest in at least 5% of the shares of the Company. The
Company had also been notified that BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee
Company Limited (“BNPN”), holds 100% of the interest of CCL as
a nominee on the same day. BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation
Limited (“BNPT”), acting as a trustee of a trust, in turn holds 100% of
the interest of BNPN. Therefore, each of BNPN and BNPT is deemed
to be interested in the 24,637,600 shares of the Company as held by
VPL with effect from 12 May 2014.

(iv) Ms. To Hau Yin is deemed to be interested in these shares through the
interest of her spouse, Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the directors of the
Company, as at 31 March 2014, no persons (other than the directors
and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
above section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
any associated corporation”) had interests and/or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme commenced on 17 September 2002 (the
“Terminated Scheme”) has expired and was replaced by a new share
option scheme approved by the shareholders of the Company on 28
August 2012 (the “Scheme”). Details of the share option scheme are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

There was no outstanding share option under the Terminated Scheme
and/or the Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the year. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, no share option under the Scheme was
granted.
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Report of the Directors
o H

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Dr. TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBS, SBS, JP, PhD (honoris causa),
aged 66, has been an executive director of the Company since June
1993. Dr. Tai is the founder and chairman of the Group, in charge of
corporate and policy planning. Apart from being awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star and Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Dr. Tai has also been
appointed as Justice of the Peace. He holds the Visiting Professor
of South China Normal University and South China Agricultural
University, member of the Board of Trustees of Jinan University. He
is a Standing Committee Member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and a Standing
Committee Member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”).
Dr. Tai holds several public positions, including the president of
the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the president of Hong Kong
Japan Confectionery, Biscuit & Foodstuffs Association, the president
of Friends of Hong Kong Association, the founding chairman of the
Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, the chairman
of the Hong Kong Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors, and
Economic Adviser of Jilin City. He received a number of awards
and accolades, including the Worldwide Prominent Chiu Chow
Business Leader Award 2012-2013, the World Outstanding Chinese
Award, the Philanthropist Award of the Grand Charity Ceremony
2011, the 30th Food Industry Distinguished Service Award, the
Award of the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries of
Japan for the Overseas Promotion of Japanese Food, the Outstanding
Contribution Award of the China National Food Industry, the
China Food Safety Annual Conference Award of Distinguished
Management Entrepreneur, the Social Responsibility Contribution
Award, “Honourable Citizen of Shantou City”, “Honourable Citizen of
Guangzhou City” and “Honourable Citizen of Jilin City” in Mainland
China. He is also the chairman and an executive director of Hong
Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited (“HKFH”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and a director of Careful Guide
Limited and Special Access Limited, both of which are the substantial
shareholders of the Company. Dr. Tai is the spouse of Dr. Wu Mei
Yung, Quinly, the managing director and an executive director of the
Company, and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Wing Biu, an executive

director of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. WU Mei Yung, Quinly, PhD (honoris causa), aged 61, has been
an executive director of the Company since June 1993. Dr. Wu is a
co-founder and the managing director of the Group, responsible for
the Group’s strategic planning and operation policies, leading the
Group’s core business in congruence with its corporate development.
She has more than 30 years’ experience in the food and confectionery
business. Dr. Wu is also a director of Careful Guide Limited and
Special Access Limited, both of which are the substantial shareholders
of the Company. She is the spouse of Dr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, the
chairman and an executive director of the Company. Dr. Wu is a sister

of Mr. Wu Wing Biu, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis, aged 58, has been an executive
director of the Company since August 1999. Mr. Man is the finance
director of the Group, responsible for corporate finance, accounting,
information technology and project investments of the Group. Mr.
Man has a Master of Commerce degree from the University of New
South Wales in Australia. He is also a member of the CPA Australia
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
gained extensive experience in finance and accounting from overseas
multinational corporations. Mr. Man joined the Group in 1992. He is
also the managing director of HKFH.

Mr. WU Wing Biu, aged 55, has been an executive director of the
Company since June 1993. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in sales,
marketing and merchandising and is now responsible for product
purchasing, merchandising, brand name development, and assisting
in the establishment of close relationship with mainland Chinese and
overseas suppliers. He has more than 30 years’ experience in the food
and confectionery industry. Mr. Wu joined the Group in 1978. He
is a brother-in-law of Dr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, the chairman and
an executive director of the Company, and a brother of Dr. Wu Mei
Yung, Quinly, the managing director and an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. YIP Wai Keung, aged 64, has been an executive director of
the Company since June 1993. Mr. Yip is responsible for project
development of the Group and liaising with joint venture partners.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yip was responsible for the sales and
marketing activities in a Japanese food company in Hong Kong. He
has more than 30 years’ experience in sales development. Mr. Yip
joined the Group in 1979. He is also an executive director of HKFH.
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Report of the Directors
o H

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. NAM Chi Ming, Gibson, aged 53, has been an executive
director of the Company since April 2010. Mr. Nam is responsible for
managerial controls and company secretarial affairs. He holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Nam is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and an
associate of both the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He has
extensive financial and managerial experience. Mr. Nam worked in the
Group from 1996 to 1999, and re-joined the Group in 2001.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 55, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since December 1998. Ms.
Leung holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Queensland in Australia and is a fellow member of the CPA Australia.
Ms. Leung has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting,
securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms. Leung is an
executive director of AMCO United Holding Limited. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Bossini International Holdings
Limited and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited. The shares of these
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Yuk Sang, Peter, aged 68, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since July 2000. Mr. Chan was
the chairman of a company listed on the Stock Exchange until July
2002. He was a senior general manager of a local bank until November
1998. Mr. Chan was also a director of a listed company in Hong
Kong from 1993 to 1995 and an executive director of a joint Chinese
foreign bank in Shenzhen until 1995. He has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and finance industry. Mr. Chan is currently
an independent non-executive director of GOME Electrical Appliances
Holding Limited and Imagi International Holdings Limited, companies
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Tsunao KIJIMA, aged 66, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since July 2011. Mr. Kijima
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Keio University
in Japan. He is the managing director and chief business officer of
Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange and Osaka Securities Exchange. He was the executive vice
president of Mitsubishi Corporation and also the chief representative
for China and Europe of Mitsubishi Corporation during different
periods of time. Mr. Kijima has more than 35 years’ experience of
worldwide trading of processed foods, beverages, snack foods and
other food products. Mr. Kijima served as a non-executive director of
Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 2001 to 2006.
He was an independent non-executive director of the Company from
1997 to 2006.

Senior Management

Mr. Kaoru ISHIKAWA, aged 58, is the general manager of the
Group, responsible for planning and managing the Group’s businesses
in Mainland China. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ishikawa was the
president of Calbee Four Seas Company Limited, a joint venture
company of the Group and CALBEE, Inc. of Japan. He was later
promoted to the position of an operating officer of CALBEE, Inc. of
Japan and became the general manager of its West Japan Division,
responsible for food production, sales and marketing. Mr. Ishikawa
has more than 30 years’ experience in the food industry and joined the
Group in 2012.

Mr. TSE Siu Wan, aged 53, is a director and the general manager
of Hong Kong Ham Holdings Limited (“HK Ham”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, responsible for the overall strategic
planning and production operation of the Group’s ham manufacturing
operations. He has extensive experience in the manufacturing of ham
and ham related products. Mr. Tse joined HK Ham in 1980. He is also
an executive director of HKFH.

Mr. LAI Yuk Fai, Patrick, aged 59, is the director of the Group’s
Hong Kong and Macau sales department, responsible for sales
development and strategic management planning of Hong Kong and
Macau markets. Mr. Lai has a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining
the Group, he was the general manager of sales department of a
multinational company. Mr. Lai joined the Group in 1998 and
temporarily left in the latter part of 2007 and re-joined the Group in
2008.
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Report of the Directors
o H

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. FUNG Kwok Wing, Kenny, aged 53, is the associate director of
the Group’s internal audit department, responsible for internal audit
function. Mr. Fung holds a Master of Business Administration degree,
Master of Corporate Governance degree, Master of Finance degree
and Master of Professional Accounting degree. He is also a member
of various professional institutes, including the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Chartered Institute of Marketing in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Fung has extensive experience in accounting and
administration. He joined the Group in 1985 and temporarily left in the
latter part of 2007 and re-joined the Group in 2008.

Ms. TAM Bo Yee, Joan, aged 36, is the financial controller of the
Group, responsible for finance and accounting. She holds a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration in accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Ms. Tam has extensive experience in finance and accounting
profession. Prior to joining the Group, she was a manager of an
international accounting firm. Ms. Tam joined the Group in 2008.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial

interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 6 August 2012, the Company entered into a Master Supply
Agreement with HKFH, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to supply or procure its
subsidiaries to supply certain pre-packed food and beverage products
to HKFH and its subsidiaries for their retail business in Mainland
China. The Master Supply Agreement has a term commencing from
the date of the signing of the Master Supply Agreement until 31
March 2015, further details of which are included in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 August 2012. For the year ended 31 March
2014, the sales of goods to a subsidiary of HKFH amounted to
approximately HK$4,464,000.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this

report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee comprises

the independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The summary of duties and works of the audit committee is set out in

the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBS, SBS, JP

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Annual Report”).

The Company’s corporate governance policies and practices are
applied and implemented in the manners as stated in the below

Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the management are committed to maintain a
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence to all shareholders.
The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential
to a continual growth and enhancement of shareholders’ value. The
Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
with reference to the latest development of corporate governance.
Throughout the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles of and complied with most of the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules with the exception of code provisions A.4.1
and A.4.2 of the CG Code, details will be set out below.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company

are summarised as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board

and Management

The role of the Board is to set up strategic goals, performance
objectives and operational policies; establish a framework of prudent
and effective controls which enables risk to be assessed and managed;
delegate authorities to the management to manage and supervise
the business of the Group; and ensure the management monitor
performance against objectives being set.

The Company has formalised a written guideline for the division
of responsibilities between the Board and the management. Certain
responsibilities or functions have been delegated by the Board to the
management which include the day-to-day business operation of the
Group, execution of corporate strategies, business and financial plans
and budgets approved by the Board and preparation of annual and
interim financial statements. The Board has reserved for its decisions
matters of the Group covering the approval of significant changes in
accounting or capital structure; approval of public announcements
and the financial statements; approval of major acquisitions, disposals
and major capital projects; approval of material borrowings and any
issuing or buying back of equity securities; approval of the annual

budget and setting of the dividend policy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprises nine directors consisting of six

executive directors and three independent non-executive directors.

The following chart shows the structure and membership of the Board
and Board’s Committees as at 31 March 2014:

A (5)
A AL

AAFEFFAFENLEF > K AFAL P E
FLREABLIEAATES -

BREZR-NE=A=Z+—H > EFFGRHEFEZH
B 2R B BB R T 3

Board of Directors

WA

Executive directors

HITHF

Tai Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)
WA ()

WIS (FH )
Man Wing Cheung, Ellis
SCRFE

Yip Wai Keung

R

Wu Wing Biu

iR 7

Nam Chi Ming, Gibson
[N

Independent non-executive directors
B BT HEF

Leung Mei Han

Chan Yuk Sang, Peter

B A=

Tsunao Kijima

A s 4 1

Wu Mei Yung, Quinly (Managing Director)

Company Secretary
ATk

Nam Chi Ming, Gibson
L]

Yip Wai Keung
B

Executive Committee Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

Wi EAE HHRELG FMELE L JAR

Tai Tak Fung, Stephen Leung Mei Han Chan Yuk Sang, Peter Tai Tak Fung, Stephen
(Chairman) (Chairperson) (Chairman) (Chairman)

R () PSS NEY ) BRE A (L) BB (L)

Wu Mei Yung, Quinly Chan Yuk Sang, Peter Wu Mei Yung, Quinly Leung Mei Han

Man Wing Cheung, Ellis Tsunao Kijima Leung Mei Han Chan Yuk Sang, Peter
SCRFE A B 4 e B3

e

PR E A

Biographical information of the directors and relevant relationships
among the directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” in the Report of the Directors of
this Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meeting

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss and
formulate overall strategies for the Company, monitor financial
performance and discuss the interim and annual results, as well as
other significant matters.

The Board has convened four regular meetings during the year ended
31 March 2014 and the attendance record of each director at the said
board meeting and the annual general meeting of the Company is set

out below:

Corporate Governance Report
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PR (A1)

A

1 i ok B T A Y

AR 9 R 9 Bk DA e R RT AR A ]
R SR B % U AR B b U A AR R
IR AT R $IH -

EFREGRRER-NE=A=+—HILEREH
R IO O R 9 o T 4% R B A R R
AR R AL BRI T

Number of meetings attended/held

W BT K
Regular Annual
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Name of director HEHW WHEEgEHa®R BEEERE
Executive directors AT
Tai Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman) AR () 4/4 1/1
Wu Mei Yung, Quinly (Managing Director) B SR (F F A PE) 4/4 1/1
Man Wing Cheung, Ellis SO 4/4 1/1
Yip Wai Keung B MR 4/4 1/1
Wu Wing Biu KA 4/4 1/1
Nam Chi Ming, Gibson [y 4/4 1/1
Independent non-executive directors S Ik P AT R
Leung Mei Han e 4/4 1/1
Chan Yuk Sang, Peter Bl A 4/4 1/1
Tsunao Kijima K B 4 4/4 0/1

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for
other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served in
accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms

of reference.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors or committee members at least
3 days before each Board meeting and each committee meeting
to keep the directors or committee members apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All directors are encouraged to take
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, upon the
performance of their duties as and when deemed necessary. The Board
and each director have separate and independent access to the senior

management where necessary.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting (continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings (continued)

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in
a matter to be considered material by the Board, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent Board committee will be set up to deal

with the matter.

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

The Board is empowered under the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional member of the Board. Appointments are first
considered by the Nomination Committee and recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the Board for decision. Details
in respect of the process and criteria for the Nomination Committee to
select and recommend candidates for directorship are provided in the
section headed “Nomination Committee”.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation for re-election by
shareholders at annual general meeting, such that every director is

subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, all
independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association. As such, the Board considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election (continued)

Under the code provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment. Every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. In accordance with the
Articles of Association, any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election. The Board considers that
such a deviation is not material as casual vacancy seldom appears and
interval between the appointment made to fill casual vacancy and the

immediate following annual general meeting is short.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.

All directors have complied with the code provision in relation to
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has arranged an annual training
session on the new development of the Listing Rules and statutory
updates for the Board during the year. In addition, some directors have
attended seminars and workshops on topics which are relevant to their
work and responsibilities so as to update their technical knowledge
and professional skills during the year ended 31 March 2014. Relevant
reading materials on corporate governance, regulatory developments
and changes of accounting standards or other topics relevant to the
Company’s business and director’s duties and responsibilities have
been given to the directors of the Company from time to time during

the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Participation by individual directors in continuous professional
development during the year under review is summarised below:

PR (A1)
0 2 45 ORI (D)

TP T LA B T 22 L A S R e B )
A

Types of training

Name of director WA k|
Executive directors AT

Tai Tak Fung, Stephen e B,C
Wu Mei Yung, Quinly R B,C
Man Wing Cheung, Ellis IR FE A, B, C
Yip Wai Keung TR B, C
Wu Wing Biu [iFi B, C
Nam Chi Ming, Gibson [ A, B, C
Independent non-executive directors LRE = KA o S

Leung Mei Han LS A, B, C
Chan Yuk Sang, Peter B A A, B, C
Tsunao Kijima A s A B,C

A — Attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums
B — Attending in-house annual training session
C — Reading updates on relevant topics

Chairman and Managing Director

Currently, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly
hold the positions of Chairman and Managing Director respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of the
executive directors and senior management, the Managing Director
is responsible for managing the Group’s business, including
implementation of objectives, policies and major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board. She is also in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day operation in accordance with the instructions
from the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors, representing one-
third of the Board, with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and
3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received a written
annual confirmation from each independent non-executive director
of his/her independence and the Company is of the view that all the
existing independent non-executive directors are independent under
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
up to the date of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which are available
to shareholders upon request. The terms of reference of the Board
committees, except those of Executive Committee, are also available
for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established with specific written terms

of reference and all of its members are executive directors.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee include approval and
execution of the corporate guarantees to be provided by the Company
to individual bankers in respect of the banking facilities granted to
any company of the Group, including wholly-owned subsidiaries, non
wholly-owned subsidiaries and associates within the meaning of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Executive Committee has held twenty-one meetings during the
year for the purposes of approving, inter alia, to give guarantees for
banking facilities granted to companies of the Group and to provide
guarantees and/or indemnities with respect to the obligations of a

wholly-owned subsidiary in tenancy agreements.

The attendance records of the Executive Committee during the year are

set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of committee member ZHARHAR R BAT R
Tai Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman of Executive Committee) WY (BT AETE) 21/21
Wu Mei Yung, Quinly WIER 21/21
Man Wing Cheung, Ellis SR 21/21
Yip Wai Keung YEfEETR 21/21
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms
of reference and all of its members are independent non-executive
directors, one of them possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. Leung Mei Han (Chairperson of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, Peter and Mr. Tsunao Kijima.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group, to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and financial reporting, to maintain an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s auditors, and to oversee the audit
process.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2014 to review the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discuss internal controls and financial reporting
matters including a review of the interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2013 and the annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 of the Company. The
Audit Committee has also reviewed the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2014 of the Group.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee during the year are set
out below:

wREZHG ()
HHEUG
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FLA 900 ) S A S i R R S
ko FEREHGBRNAE =B LENTHESE
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A S e o
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FEREZEGRBRER -NE=ZH=+—HILFE
WS AT T U Rk o DA B AR 5 BT R A R BOR
B L o Sl B A M B R R LSRR
BIAAFBREZ =4 =+ HIkAMA fh
BB HRE > URREF-=Z4=ZA=Z+—HI
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BRER-WE=ZA=+—HILERZE L -
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Number of meetings attended/held

Name of committee member ZHAMBEAR HR AT Ik B
Leung Mei Han (Chairperson of Audit Committee) REW(FEZEGTEE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Sang, Peter PR AR 2/2
Tsunao Kijima K5 A I 2/2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with specific written
terms of reference and is currently constituted by two independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, Peter (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and Ms. Leung Mei Han and an
executive director, namely Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly.

The Company has adopted the model where the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of all directors and senior management and the
remuneration packages of individual directors and senior management
of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has convened one meeting during
the year to review, inter alia, the Group’s remuneration policy and
structure; the remuneration packages of all directors and senior
management by reference to the individual performance, skills and
knowledge, time commitment and responsibilities, and performance
and profitability of the Group; and the service contracts of the
directors for the year under review. Details of the emoluments of
each director of the Company are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee during the
year are set out below:
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HREZHE ()
W%

2 B ©ORor o S DL T B Y T R
> Bl R B B4 W 45 8 5 JF AT B A e
(HZH & E0) KRRt > Uk — A ITHE
FWRALL -

A0y W PR AR T 22 B A ) AT B A
BN B2 55 I 4 208 1 o = 7 48 1 e K o I
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Number of meetings attended/held

Name of committee member ZHAWAHT LY ZFR-F 1/
Chan Yuk Sang, Peter B E A

(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) € 1. EF-8EF D 1/1
Wu Mei Yung, Quinly i 1/1
Leung Mei Han BN 1/1

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management, not being the directors of the Company, by
band is set out below:

BEZF-NE=ZA=+HILFERERERFZ
AR BN Z H AL

Remuneration band i T AL Number of person
(HK3) (#7c) A¥
Nil to 1,000,000 % %1,000,000 4
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 % 3,000,000 1

Further particulars regarding the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

R L BLAI B Sk 16 B F R ITEA B
Z T 4 DA B AL T B v R B R 2 — R
5 SR B 2 R A M S %O o

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with specific written
terms of reference and currently comprises an executive director,
namely Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two independent non-executive directors, namely Ms.
Leung Mei Han and Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, Peter.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring
the appointment and succession planning of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors. The Nomination
Committee will also identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships when there
were vacancies on the Board. All appointments will be made based
on merits and against objective criteria with due regard to the Board
diversity policy of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has convened one meeting during the
year to review, inter alias, the Board’s structure, size and composition
to ensure that it had a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

The attendance records of the Nomination Committee during the year
are set out below:

wREZHG ()
REZUG

P4 2 B EORor o S DL AT B Y T R
CBIRFH —~ AT EFRE L e (A ZEY
ER) LW ABILIERTERREW L L AR A

RAZHOGZETEBREARH EFTIREAS
BRLAGERGREEEFZAME)Y - BEHEER
AL R AT 8] > DL RGPl Sr R BT o 2 o
P o 384 Z 5 5 0 70 0 B2 R € LA
T M 9 R B BRI AL > AR Bk AR
MALRA AR S L ERFFELER - TAZ
L% B B LR RIE » 36 L& B 1 7 40 T %
EFERE ZULBOR MM -

24 % 5 [l AR B W 2R AT — Ik > AR B (3L
HALEE) W A NS ALK > DL R A AR
O F W 2 RS - BhE S AL S P A

P& HERAE N Z R A SRS T

Number of meetings attended/held

Name of committee members ZEFRBAR R BAT f R B
Tai Tak Fung, Stephen wmrE

(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (##EZHEGLNE) 1/1
Leung Mei Han LW 1/1
Chan Yuk Sang, Peter B A 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. On 23
August 2013, the Company adopted a Board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board of the Company. Under the Policy, the Nomination Committee
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in reviewing and
assessing the Board composition. The Nomination Committee has
assessed the composition of the Board against these aspects and has

come to the conclusion that it is a balanced board of directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

For corporate governance, the Board is responsible for performing the

functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG

Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors of the Company
(the “Code of Conduct”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors
of the Company, the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Code of
Conduct throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company has also established the Code for Securities Transactions
by the Relevant Employees (the “Employees Code”) on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by the
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of
the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Code
by the employees was noted by the Company throughout the year ended
31 March 2014.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014, appropriate accounting principles and policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are
appropriate and reasonable; and these financial statements have been

prepared on a going concern basis.

The senior management of the Company provides the Board with
such information and explanations as are necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial

information and position, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Board is also responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of both annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors, Messrs. Ernst
& Young (“EY™), are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this Annual Report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that

may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
(continued)

External Auditors’ Remuneration

EY have been re-appointed as the Company’s external auditors by
shareholders at the 2013 annual general meeting until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting. They are primarily responsible for
providing audit services in connection with the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, EY received approximately
HK$2,628,000 (2013: HK$2,480,000) for audit and related services
and HK$359,000 (2013: HK$519,000) for other non-audit services
which include the taxation services.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company’s
assets and reviewing its effectiveness. The system, including the
strategies, policies and expectations on the oversight of the Company’s
internal control and risk management, has been designed to manage
the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives. Therefore, it can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement, loss or fraud. The management is accountable to the
Board for implementing the strategies and policies on internal control

and risk management adopted by the Board.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal controls of the Group including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training

programmes and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Nam Chi Ming, Gibson, an executive director of the Company,
is the company secretary. During the year under review, Mr. Nam
undertook more than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 73 of the Articles and Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition
of shareholders holding at the date of deposit not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right to
vote deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong

specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 30 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed to convene the general meeting, the requistionists
themselves may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are available for viewing on the Company’s

website at www.fourseasgroup.com.hk.

Shareholders’ Enquiries and Proposals

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests for putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Four Seas Group Building, No. 1 Hong
Ting Road, Sai Kung, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company

Secretary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

On 1 April 2012, The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy reflecting mostly current practices of the Company for
communication with its shareholders. Such policy aims at disseminating
information in relation to the Group to shareholders in a timely manner
through a number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars, and is reviewed regularly by the

Board to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company maintains a website at www.fourseasgroup.com.hk as
a communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Company’s announcements, business
developments/operations and other information are available for public

access.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairmen
of the Board and Board committees actively participate in the annual
general meeting and answer questions from the shareholders. Notice
of the annual general meeting is sent to the shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the meeting. All resolutions put forward
at shareholder meetings including the annual general meeting will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company

after each shareholder meeting.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. A consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 37 B BRI A

Ernst & Young ZKETHRI =T
ﬁ i 22/F, CITIC Tower BBRRAEER
?. 17im Mei Avenue,  FR{E Ak B2212

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Four Seas
Mercantile Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 171, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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To the shareholders of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

% 0 H i R

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

2014 2013
R PR —E =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
7t T o T T

REVENUE KA 5 2,910,406 2,899,647
Cost of sales BB R AR (1,915,303) (2,014,020)
Gross profit EH 995,103 885,627
Other income and gains FEAts e A B W 25 5 42,547 46,478
Selling and distribution expenses kY &gk | (546,828) (495,545)
Administrative expenses AT BUBA 32 (278,169) (255,755)
Other operating expenses JL A 42 8 B 7 (14,030) (30,732)
Finance costs Tl B AR 6 (15,185) (18,577)
Share of profits and losses of associates JRE A W28 28 ] s R K e 1R 8,510 9,244
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3 BE i ik A 7 191,948 140,740
Income tax expense Pt 44 i B 32 10 (39,668) (33,537)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AR P % A 152,280 107,203
Attributable to: B A

Equity holders of the Company RN RER A # 11 160,137 110,779

Non-controlling interests I e I HE A (7,857) (3,576)

152,280 107,203
HK cents HK cents
WAl WAl

EARNINGS PER SHARE A2 W] ¥ w2

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY Pi A & AN

EQUITY HOLDERS OF 19 Bt 74 A

THE COMPANY

— Basic and diluted — F A % i 13 41.3 28.5

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in A B AAR FE OAT BB B i B B S S B R

note 12 to the financial statements. M EE12 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 53

B 4% WY gR R

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

2014 2013
—F—WiE R =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
At it T T BT T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AE A 152,280 107,203
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME iy % i 4§ 2
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Viygin: 2 ]
to be reclassified to profit or Eifa Z H M2
loss in subsequent periods: Weas~(H1R) :
Available-for-sale investments: GRS S
Changes in fair value ARER 4 U] 36,085 13,994
Reclassification adjustments for BEHBRZ
gains/losses included in the Wﬁﬁ/gjﬁ
consolidated statement of profit ZEHBHH
or loss i 2
— gain on disposal — Bz W 5 (24,182) (8,655)
— impairment losses — VR AH 1 18 7 418 13,627
Income tax effect Jii 45 T 5 2 - -
12,321 18,966
Exchange differences: FEE 0, 75 4
Translation of foreign operations WM B (2,007) 13,213
Reclassification adjustments for P ENEAFZ
gains included in the consolidated Wi iR A REERZ
statement of profit or loss T4 U
upon disposal of subsidiaries - (4,639)
(2,007) 8,574
Share of other comprehensive income A Ay Y 7 2 R At 2 T
of associates & 447 870
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE A 4 L i 2 4
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, B BL %
NET OF TAX 10,761 28,410
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE A P 8 2 LA
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 163,041 135,613
Attributable to: % A
Equity holders of the Company RN RER TR # 11 171,378 138,519
Non-controlling interests I e I HE A (8,337) (2,906)
163,041 135,613

ZOF Mg E o W OoW % M OA R A H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BB R DL
31 March 2014 =% —p4E==+—H
2014 2013
R o=
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
Mt BT T BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik ¥ By B e
Property, plant and equipment L/ B & ] 14 563,252 563,834
Investment property E=g//ES 15 19,958 19,998
Prepaid land lease payments TH AT 4 Hb LB 3K0E 16 109,645 113,146
Goodwill T 17 36,739 36,809
Investments in associates REBEAFRZE’E 19 164,391 158,698
Available-for-sale investments Wt E R 20 47,639 77,533
Deposits HES 24 21,424 18,092
Deferred tax assets IR JE LI A A 29 1,530 1,576
Total non-current assets J IR Bh B A 964,578 989,686
CURRENT ASSETS i )
Due from associates R W W 5 2\ ) 19 23 15
Current livestock HHEE 21 - 179
Inventories eyt 22 270,093 253,094
Trade receivables JRE W B 5 B Ak 23 494,499 502,953
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAS K ~ BT 4 R A
receivables & Wk I 24 105,455 94,798
Tax recoverable ] g o] Fot TE 145 1,924
Financial assets at fair value through N TEE BB R ARY
profit or loss 4 A A 25 9,334 12,012
Cash and cash equivalents B4 J Bl I H 26 745,823 610,724
Total current assets i B AR 1,625,372 1,475,699
CURRENT LIABILITIES R By £1 4%
Trade payables, other payables WEAT B2 5 MRk ~ G At B A
and accruals K I B e w1 27 357,810 335,484
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT R B Z SRAT B 28 773,045 781,630
Tax payable JE A i JE 21,031 26,745
Total current liabilities it B £ A AR 1,151,886 1,143,859
NET CURRENT ASSETS i B Y 7 ¥ 473,486 331,840
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT B8 A DR AL B 114
LIABILITIES 1,438,064 1,321,526

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B IR DL

31 March 2014 —%2—N4£=H=+—H

2014 2013
R PR SR =g
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M7t BT o BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES IR By £ %
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AR B Z SR AT B 28 60,284 74,533
Deferred tax liabilities I HE A5 JE £ 29 19,095 18,251
Total non-current liabilities I B & A A 79,379 92,784
Net assets &SR 1,358,685 1,228,742
EQUITY i 2%
Equity attributable to equity holders B JB 0 A 2 W) B AR T A A
of the Company BE 2%
Issued capital CEEAT B AR 30 38,790 38,790
Reserves ik HE 32(a) 1,266,555 1,146,540
Proposed final dividend R R B S 12 23,275 19,395
1,328,620 1,204,725
Non-controlling interests I e B 2% 30,065 24,017
Total equity HE 25 5 {8 1,358,685 1,228,742

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen ¥ &
Director % FH

NAM Chi Ming, Gibson ¥ & W
Director # F

ZOF Mg E o W OoW % M OA R A H
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A% A ME o 5 B R

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRI B
Available-
for-sale
Share investment ~ Capital ~ Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium  Reserve Revaluation  Capital revaluation redemption fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account funds reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividend Total  interests equity
ik
with ] RELH WARE  ERYH ERAH
Rk wEOR GE EREE WARE L1 L1 Al A K& it RRRER  ERAM
Notes  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
Wit EWTL #ETL EWTL ENTL EWTL #WTT BNTL BNTL ENTL ENTL #RTL #WTT ENTL
(note 30) (note 32(z)) (note 32(a)) (note 32(a)
(Wits0) (Wits2) (i) (Hits2)
At April 2012 e St 311); Rl 39070 222482 6,539 24403 750 (14,340) 674 104525 702,343 19416 1,105,862 29975 1135837
Profit for the year fE A - - - - - - - - 10 -0 (3,576 107203
Other comprehensive EREbAR
income/(loss) for the year: Wikt / (B#) :
Changes in fair value of WS ERE AT
available-for-sale 2% Rt
investments, net of tax - - - - - 18,966 - - - - 18,966 - 18,966
Share of other comprehensive AR AT A
income of associates 2Tl - - - - - - - 870 - - 870 - 870
Release of exchange fluctuation  th &t AT I EHZ
reserve upon disposal I 5L B0
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (4,639 - - (4,639) - (4,639
Exchange differences on BSTBONER
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - - - - - 12,543 - - 12,543 670 13213
Total comprehensive income 4 A2 g
for the year - - - - - 18,966 - 8774 110,719 - 138519 (2,906) 135,613
Acquisition of non-controlling BT R4
interests - - - - - - - 1,848 (8,284) - (6,436) (5,285 (11,121)
Contribution by non-controlling 4l &5 % %
interests - - - - - - - - - - - 3,087 3,087
Dividends paid to EAFPRERES RS
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - (854) (854)
Repurchase of shares i i 30 80 (5976) - - - - 49 - (280) - (6,044) - (6,044)
Final 2012 dividend declared ~~ HR-F—ZHFKHRE - - - - - - - - - (19416 (19416) - (19416)
Tnterim 2013 dividend CE-ZEPBRE 12 - - - - - - - - (1,760) - (1.760) - (1,760)
Proposed final 2013 dividend ~ “F-ZERHEXMRE 12 - - - - - - - — (19395 19395 - - -
Transfer to reserve funds HRERES - - 654 - - - - - (654) - - - -
Release of revaluation reserve on Al LM RHF
leasehold land and buildings to Ty B i F IR 2
retained profits e A - - - (535) - - - - 535 - - - -
At31 March 2013 REZ-ZEZA=+-H 3879  216506% 7193 23868+ 750% 4,626* L166* 15,147 777284 19395 1204725 01T 1208742
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E -2 —NEZA =+ HIREE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRI B
Available-
for-sale
Share investment Capital ~ Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium  Reserve Revaluation Capital revaluation redemption fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account funds reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividend Total ~interests equity
ik
with 4} JELH WARE  ERYH EEAH

RA - wEOR O WE EMBG WARE B B Bl RERA RE MG RBRRE  BERK
Noe  HESO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'O00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS000  HKS000

Wi #ETT #ETT #ETT #ETT BNTT BNTT EETT EETT #ETT #TT #ETT #NTT #ETE

(note 30) (note 32(a)) (note 32(a)) (note 32(a)
(Wits0) (Witsdw) (i) (Hits2)
At 1 April 2013 REZZ-ZENA—-H 3879 216506 7,193 23,368 750 4626 1166 115,147 777284 19395 1,204725 01T 12874
Profit for the year Lkl - - - - - - - - 160137 - 160037 (71857 152280
Other comprehensive EREbAR
income/(loss) for the year: Wi/ (B#) -
Changes in fair value of M ERE 2 ATE
available-for-sale 28 Rk
investments, net of tax - - - - - 12,321 - - - - 12,321 - 12,321
Share of other comprehensive TR A A
income of associates 2l - - - - - - - 4“1 - - W - 4“1
Exchange differences on BB ER
translation of foreign B AR
operations - - - - - - - (1,527) - - (1,527) (480) (2,007)
Total comprehensive income 4 A2 g
for the year - - - - - 12321 - (1,080 160,137 - 171,378 (8337) 163,041
Acquisitions of non-controlling  WUBFE {45
interests - - - - - - - 3515 (23,845) - (20,330 8,220 (12,110)
Contributions by non-controlling ~ J¢ 4% B 45 1
interests - - - - - - - - - - - 7,643 7643
Dividends paid to non-controlling &6 P B &5 1t &
interests - - - - - - - - - - - (1478) (1,478)
Final 2013 dividend declared ~~ HR-F-ZHEAH KA - - - - - - - - - (19395 (19,399) - (1939)
Interim 2014 dividend ZE-BEPERE 12 - - - - - - - -8 - 178 -8
Proposed final 2014 dividend ~ “F—MEREAMRE 12 - - - - - - - - W) BYs - - -
Transfer to reserve funds BRERES - - 303 - - - - - (303) - - - -
Release of revaluation reserve on B L HRMF L
leaschold land and buildings to ~ EAE R AR E
retained profits A - - - (535) - - - - 535 - - - -
At31 March 2014 REZ-WEZA=+-H 38790 216,506 7496 23333 750 16947 Lleo*  117582%  88L775* 23275 1328620 30,065 138,685
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * AR AT A A M BRI E R Z AR
HK$1,266,555,000 (2013: HK$1,146,540,000) in the consolidated 1,266,555,000% 76 (=& — = 4F 1 1,146,540,000%
statement of financial position. JC) °

= o MO o WoW O£ EMA R AH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

WAl eiER

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

2014 2013
—F—WiE ER =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt it T T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING #BEHZHLHE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax g ot i ¥z A 191,948 140,740
Adjustments for: BT 5 45 TE AR HY R
Share of profits and losses of associates JRE A 6 5 A ) vk B % G 1 (8,510) (9,244)
Bank interest income AT R BB 5 (1,376) (1,215)
Dividend income from listed At B REZ
available-for-sale investments B B A 5 (8,414) (6,815)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale g B AT
investments (transfer from equity) Wegs (A RERS) 5 (24,182) (8,655)
Fair value gain on financial assets AT EEBRERARY
at fair value through profit or loss SR EZ A KR 5 (2,824) (2,827)
Increase in fair value less estimated HERIEEHEEYRE
point-of-sale costs attributable to SEE) 2 A AR
physical change on non-current PRI B R
livestock A 7 - 8)
Decrease in fair value less estimated S B O I 0 A o AR
point-of-sale costs attributable to S 2 AP AL A
price change on non-current livestock TR R S R B 7 - 1
Finance costs [LE2g%N 6 15,185 18,577
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of WY~ W5
items of property, plant and RWIEE ZEE
equipment, net (Wesk) » 7 3,386 (12,504)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H A B A 7] 2 W gk 5 - (4,724)
Depreciation Eii 7 55,069 51,810
Recognition of prepaid land lease O R LAY
payments P& K 7 3,344 3,281
Amortisation of non-current livestock I H B % 7 - 2
Impairment of available-for-sale o gt I
investments 7 418 13,627
Impairment of trade receivables R Wi BT B B K 7 60 1,035
Impairment of slow-moving inventories W B WA 7 1,025 618
Impairment of goodwill TR 2 U A 7 = 1,942
Impairment of non-current livestock I H & & A 7 - 66
225,129 185,707
Decrease in non-current livestock FEMEEZ WD - 58
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due JRE W I 2 A Bl =2 WA ()
from associates (8) 546
Decrease in current livestock EHEERZBA 179 3,468
Increase in inventories FEZHm (17,885) (36,388)
Decrease in trade receivables FE W B iRk =2 WA 8,193 28,300
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AT RIE ~ AT R oAt
deposits and other receivables JE Wk 3B 2 WA (B ) (14,079) 19,560
Increase in trade payables, other JEAT B2 55 MRk ~ At B £
payables and accruals AR O T B R Z B 22,465 14,314
Cash generated from operations REXEBMBZEHE 223,994 215,565
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRI Y ) (36,294) (16,452)
Overseas taxes paid A Al A5 3 (6,305) (8,250)
Net cash flows from operating REEHZBEWMNFH
activities — page 59 - 59K 181,395 190,863
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEABlEREL
Year ended 31 March 2014 ®EZ% ~PEZH =1 H L4
2014 2013
R L SF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it T T BT T
Net cash flows from operating activities REEBZHESWMATH
— page 58 - 58H 181,395 190,863
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BERHZB LR
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received O IERIT R B 1,376 1,215
Dividends received from listed investments I T 3% % 2 & B U A 8,414 6,815
Dividends received from associates W B 7 4 6] B 2,990 3,601
Purchases of items of property, plant A~ B K&
and equipment WA IE H (59,364) (54,486)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME - WE K&k
of property, plant and equipment TH H P31 254 15,944
Proceeds from disposal of e ERE
available-for-sale investments i 45 3k 08 72,931 43,954
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H B A FEBMB R ARZ
at fair value through profit or loss 4 7l 7 P A5 K O 16,818 4,902
Disposal of subsidiaries H B B g 2 W 33 - (194)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments [ A 0] At H & # & (6,952) (14,285)
Purchases of financial assets at fair N YN L (s 4 = E )
value through profit or loss AR Z Sl B (11,316) (14,087)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BWEEHEZEHERA GRH)
activities A 25,151 (6,621)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING  @h¥% 3% B2 Bl & ifi it
ACTIVITIES
New bank and trust receipt loans BT SRAT Bk S S RO AR 1,721,179 1,651,664
Repayment of bank and trust receipt loans $R47TE 3k K fE 7GR B Z B (1,743,784) (1,730,499)
Interest paid oA F B (15,185) (18,577)
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests W Jif JF 45 JBE B 25 (12,110) (123)
Contributions by non-controlling interests JE 45 B #E 25 ¥ & 7,643 3,087
Dividends paid oA (27,153) (27,176)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT T I i B Je e 6
shareholders (1,478) (854)
Repurchase of shares i 1] J¢ oy - (6,044)
Net cash flows used in financing activities % 3% B = Bl 4 it t 3 % (70,888) (128,522)

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bl iR R

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

2014 2013
N —g-=4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wik T T T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH B4 kB &%/ H
EQUIVALENTS B4 Im - 135,658 55,720
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ER 2B RB4&EMEEE
of year 610,724 552,147
Effect of foreign exchange rate VE SR A B 5 B >
changes, net (559) 2,857
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBERBEFMHEH
AT END OF YEAR 745,823 610,724
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B4 KBl &% Mi% H &4 1
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z b
Cash and bank balances & R RITHTE 26 484,918 371,467
Time deposits with original maturity FEAHEHBEASR=MA
of less than three months when acquired Z W17k 26 260,905 239,257
Cash and cash equivalents as stated A M B ARDLER K
in the consolidated statement HABERER
of financial position and the imZBie Rk
consolidated statement of cash flows R&SHIEH 745,823 610,724
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Statement of Financial Position

B 5 51k DL

31 March 2014 —%2—N4£=H=+—H

2014 2013
e Sy 11 R =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt it BT o BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS et By
Investments in subsidiaries R E AR Z’E 18 93,108 93,108
Available-for-sale investments WAL E R E 20 248 148
Total non-current assets e B A AR 93,356 93,256
CURRENT ASSETS IR Y
Due from subsidiaries JRE W B g 2 ) 18 677,777 649,707
Prepayments AT K 24 139 139
Cash and bank balances B4 M SRAT S5 % 26 470 804
Total current assets B R R 678,386 650,650
CURRENT LIABILITIES i B £ 4
Due to subsidiaries JE A B i 2 W) 18 429,063 406,723
Accruals HEFH A 27 1,465 1,059
Total current liabilities i B R A 430,528 407,782
NET CURRENT ASSETS Ui B 247,858 242,868
Net assets BT 341,214 336,124
EQUITY B 2%
Issued capital T AT IR AR 30 38,790 38,790
Reserves fiti fh 32(b) 279,149 277,939
Proposed final dividend e A 3 e B 12 23,275 19,395
Total equity HE £i A8 AH 341,214 336,124

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen ¥ f& %
Director #

NAM Chi Ming, Gibson ¥ & W]
Director # %

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Notes to Financial Statements

W %5 A W ek

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered
office of the Company is located at the offices of Caledonian
Trust (Cayman) Limited, Caledonian House, 69 Dr. Roy’s
Drive, P.O. Box 1043 KY1-1102, George Town, Grand Cayman,

Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in investment
holding, manufacturing and trading of snack foods, confectionery,
beverages, frozen food products, noodles, ham and ham-related

products, and the operations of restaurants.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an investment property,
certain properties classified as property, plant and equipment,
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and
certain available-for-sale investments which have been measured
at valuation or fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group

had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 Hie i W Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKEFRS 10

HKEFRS 11

HKERS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKEFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

— Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

issued in June 2012

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13, and amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 36, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs

are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements and
addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single control
model used for determining which entities are consolidated.
To meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, an investor
must have (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. The
changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of
the Group to exercise significant judgement to determine

which entities are controlled.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its

involvement with investees as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries and
associates are included in notes 18 and 19 to the financial

statements.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required
to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how fair
value should be applied where its use is already required
or permitted under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied
prospectively and the adoption has had no material impact
on the Group’s fair value measurements. As a result of
the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for measuring fair
value have been amended. Additional disclosures required
by HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of the
investment property and financial instruments are included

in notes 15 and 39 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items

(e)

presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). Items
that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at
a future point in time (for example, exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations, net movement on
cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale
financial assets) are presented separately from items which
will never be reclassified (for example, the revaluation of
land and buildings). The amendments have affected the
presentation only and have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. In addition, the
Group has chosen to use the new title “statement of profit
or loss” as introduced by the amendments in these financial

statements.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which is
not impaired. In addition, the amendments require the
disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-
generating units for which an impairment loss has been
recognised or reversed during the reporting period, and
expand the disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their recoverable
amounts are based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also applied. The Group
has early adopted the amendments in these financial
statements. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group. Disclosures
about the Group’s impaired non-financial assets are included

in note 17 to the financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

2.3 CLAUM Lo 2 3802 7 M B 30 3
e B

S [0 3 AR 7 A B 2 4% e M DA LA A
AR SRR AT B AR A T A v A e A R -

financial statements.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKEFRS 14
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Financial Instruments’
Hedge Accounting and amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39°

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
— Investment Entities’

Amendments to HKAS 11 Joint
Arrangements — Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 -
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation*

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in January 2014?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in January 2014°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements for a period
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and not applicable to the
Group

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

7B U SR 05 PHIA
7B O U B0 B gt AR R
B U 57 5 ERFK - B BH
&3 bR R BRRTHRE Gt BA
(BiTA) FIRZ BT
B W R 103 il MO R SR 0%
U U 128 Bl R 125 1
Rt R 570 B R ST
(ZF——F) (BiTK) (ZF——F) 2Bk
-REAH
Gt SR R SR
(BiTA) mELH - WA
REWEZ il
2B
B A U 56 143 EFECET
i At 0% il a5 63 R A
R B ERY it R385 - B TR Z
(BiTA) AT RBER Ty o 2 BT
A RIS 198 ERSHR At 7

(ZF——F) (BiTK)

Bl AR A8 (BT A)

~RE WA : WA

2R
FEATBIARS LB LA

2H- 4 BAAALH

AEZHHZBTE
BE A0 (BTA)  BRGIHENFRLH LA -
Rt 8-t A
ZEHRH MG #L
HEZBTK
i (G RRRLHE) A4
- B
ZE-FEETE-TFEN REF-NE-RAREMZSH
k£ 744 TS B L 2 T A
S EEIESERY REFNE-NRRZSH
ZERAE RS B R 2 T A
b ORISR AR B AR B 2 4R BN
3K

P REFR-EEEA—

A3

CORTE N

H B2 4% BH 4t < 47 B2 3T )

Hekz @Mz My

A 4 13 A v S 75 o o ) B o A K i A

R A S

CORCERE A

3%

H 82 4% BH 4y Z 47 B2 YT )

S TR R ) A 28 AR T R

= g E e

oW &% M oAF R oA A

67



68

Notes to Financial Statements

W %5 A W ek

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

2.31ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with
the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVQO”).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value
change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have

been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the
requirements related to hedge accounting and made some
related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which include the
corresponding disclosures about risk management activity for
applying hedge accounting. The amendments to HKFRS 9 relax
the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which result
in more risk management strategies being eligible for hedge
accounting. The amendments also allow greater flexibility on the
hedged items and relax the rules on using purchased options and
non-derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments. In
addition, the amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply
only the improved accounting for own credit risk-related fair
value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as introduced
in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9 requirements at the
same time.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The previous
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 was removed by the
HKICPA in December 2013 and a mandatory effective date
will be determined after the entire replacement of HKAS 39 is
completed. However, the standard is available for application
now. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other

phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather
than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made to
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The Group expects that these amendments will not have any
impact on the Group as the Company is not an investment entity
as defined in HKFRS 10.
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2.31ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 April
2014.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and

receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as

part of the Group’s investments in associates

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or

loss.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in associates are treated
as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition fair value and

any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change in other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,

recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of

the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, livestock, financial assets, an investment
property and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

()

(i1)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

()

(i1)

(iii)

(@iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity or of a parent of the entity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amounts in
the financial statements relating to periods ended before 30
September 1995 are not required to be regularly revalued when
the Group does not revalue their property, plant and equipment
subsequent to 1995. An annual transfer from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an
asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is

transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases Over the lease terms

Buildings 2% — 10%
Leasehold improvements 10% — 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% — 25%
Plant and machinery 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 15% — 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment property

An investment property is an interest in land and building
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such property is measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the investment property is stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in the statement of profit or loss
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of the
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value presented as other income and gains and in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial

recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2.4 LR BRI (5)

BV B JC A 4 b ¥ B2 ()
& At
< R AR R IR IR

H4 2\ T 7% 788 18 dis A 1 < il

A VAR ZE AR 35 AR WY < 0 B 2 S 5 A
B < Tl A D A e R R P R
mARZIEE TR E - FEASRE RS
RN > WA BARFERS - i TR
(B R A SRR A& TR R B A R EEE
F3& - MR TR R 2 T BRI TR (G & A8
o R SE395%) H BRAb

AP AR 15 AR 2 4l B 8 1% A “FAE
A B AR DA AR 5 T 216 35 4 ) U R 4R 2 3%
FIAE AW S W 38 o %55 o B A B A
45 < i P R AR AT B S R L > B
R 3R T O e ] R A Y BT DA e

5

RAREEBE R EE0RZ R > RGN
R A R A2 T 0 0 e 0 3 A P (L8 0 1
ai A MR 2 4 il o



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in other

operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and a
club debenture. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor

designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,

such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable

future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the

statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continued to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been

realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not

reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is

impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit of loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments

in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables

and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group invests in certain derivative financial instruments,
such as currency-linked deposits, to enhance its investment
return. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken

directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares)
are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the

consideration is recognised in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Livestock

Livestock are stated at fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs, except where the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in
which case they are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. The fair value of livestock is
determined based on market prices of livestock of similar age,
breed and genetic merit.

Net increments or decrements in the fair value of livestock are

included in the statement of profit or loss, and are determined as:

(a) the difference between the total fair value of the livestock
recognised at the beginning of the financial year and the
total fair value of the livestock recognised at the end of the
financial year; and

(b) the costs incurred, during the financial year the livestock are

acquired and bred.

Non-current livestock stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses, represent breeder peafowls and are
amortised over ten years using the sum-of-digits method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and
includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. In the case of work in progress and self-produced
finished goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overhead. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral

part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 B G BOR N (5)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset;

(c) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established;

(d) management fee income, in the period in which services are

rendered; and

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 10% to 22% of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model or the Black-

Scholes model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or

service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a

liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value
has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Changes
to these key judgement and estimates could materially affect
the determination of whether there is an impairment and the
related amounts. If there are significant adverse changes in the
aforementioned judgement and estimates, it may be necessary
to record significant additional impairment charge in future
periods. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2014
was HK$36,739,000 (2013: HK$36,809,000). Further details are

given in note 17.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating
to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2014 was HK$415,000
(2013: HK$415,000). The amounts of unrecognised tax losses
for subsidiaries situated in Hong Kong and Mainland China at 31
March 2014 were HK$128,234,000 (2013: HK$128,513,000) and
HK$178,250,000 (2013: HK$175,529,000), respectively. Further
details of the Group’s deferred tax are contained in note 29 to the

financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the
fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the
decline in value to determine whether there is an impairment that
should be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. During the
year, impairment losses of HK$418,000 (2013: HK$13,627,000)
have been recognised for available-for-sale investments.
The carrying amount of available-for-sale investments was
HK$47,639,000 (2013: HK$77,533,000).

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables

The Group conducts impairment reviews of financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate so that the
actual impairment loss might be higher than expected, the Group
would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance
and its future results would be affected. At 31 March 2014, an
aggregate impairment of trade receivables of HK$5,830,000
(2013: HK$6,454,000) has been made and the carrying amount of
trade receivables was HK$494,499,000 (2013: HK$502,953,000).
At 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of deposits and other
receivables was HK$85,275,000 (2013: HK$73,409,000) and no
impairment loss was made (2013: Nil).
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on geographical areas and has two reportable

operating segments as follows:

(i) the Hong Kong segment is engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of snack foods, confectionery, beverages, frozen
food products, ham and ham-related products, noodles and
the retailing of snack foods, confectionery and beverages,

and the operations of restaurants; and

(i1) the Mainland China segment is engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of snack foods, confectionery, beverages, frozen
food products, poultry products, noodles, and ham and ham-

related products and the operations of restaurants.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, dividend income and
unallocated gains, impairment of available-for-sale investments,
finance costs, share of profits and losses of associates and
corporate and other unallocated expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale investments, deferred
tax assets, tax recoverable, investments in associates, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and cash and cash

equivalents as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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4. BERIWER (B)

Geographical segments I B, 2y 8
Group Hong Kong Mainland China Total
£ wiE B K B Bt
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
RN CR-ZE CR-NE RS JF-Ng ZR-=4
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BYTL  EFFL EFTE BFFL BEFTL BRI
Segment revenue: WA
Sales to external customers HETHRER 1,920,248 1,901,473 990,158 998,174 2,910,406 2,899,647
Intersegment sales S 4,022 3,594 239,417 222,861 243,439 226,455
1,924,270 1,905,067 1,229,575 1,221,035 3,153,845 3,126,102
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment sales 1A 36 84 B 4 (243,439) (226,455)
Revenue KA 2,910,406 2,899,647
Segment results Vi E3 176,327 136,140 6,793 25,652 183,120 161,792
Reconciliation: B -
Interest income MEBA 1,376 1,215
Dividend income and unallocated JB BN B A 4 L
gains Bt 35,677 18,514
Impairment of available-for-sale AL RE 2 WA
investments (418) (13,627)
Finance costs L A (15,185) (18,577)
Share of profits and losses JEEAK Tk 8 8 W ¥ A
of associates Kl 8,510 9,244
Corporate and other unallocated ) R F A A 4 OB
expenses (21,132) (17,821)
Profit before tax W i ¥ ) 191,948 140,740
TR — W OEE W WOW % EF MR A A
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

4. BERIWER (B)

Geographical segments (continued) Wit B 23 B (48)
Group Hong Kong Mainland China Total
£ B Ll PN At
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
RN CR-ZE CR-NE RS RN D=4
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BWTL  EWFL  EWTEL  #¥FTT BT BFTT
Segment assets NI 1,048,142 976,543 853,184 829972 1,901,326 1,806,515
Reconciliation: B
Elimination of intersegment VA 0 Wk T 8
receivables (280,238) (203,597)
Investments in associates REE AR Z R E 164,391 158,698
Corporate and other unallocated A R A 43 L
assets 804,471 703,769
Total assets B A 2,589,950 2,465,385
Segment liabilities Vg 3L 290,320 248,781 347,728 290,300 638,048 539,081
Reconciliation: B -
Elimination of intersegment payables P s JEE £ 7 JE 41k (280,238) (203,597)
Corporate and other unallocated A R A A B
liabilities 873,455 901,159
Total liabilities RS 1,231,265 1,236,643
Other segment information: JLfb 2 W HH
Impairment of trade receivables AR Wi B 50 W o k1 17 - 43 1,035 60 1,035
Impairment of slow-moving inventories ¥ 8 77 £ il fi 98 60 927 558 1,025 618
Impairment of goodwill T A - - - 1,942 - 1,942
Depreciation and amortisation®**  H7 8 & i+ 22,329 19,125 36,084 35,966 58,413 55,091
Capital expenditure* A B 17,085 22,916 42,279 31,570 59,364 54,486
Non-current assets** B B 197,096 205,869 532,498 527918 729,594 733,787
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BB S MR E ¥ - M Kkl - AT+

equipment, prepaid land lease payments and investment property.

#*  Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, deferred tax assets
and investments in associates.

#*%  Depreciation and amortisation exclude amortisation of non-current

livestock.

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

HoAH SR S R 3k -

wx o JERENE EA GRS TR - BRI E X
I AT ZBRE -

e T RS A AR IR A W -



S. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
invoiced value of goods sold, net of discounts and returns. An

analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

5. WA ~ JEflBOA B Wt

W AN BPACSR W 2 8 31 > SRR R I OB R AR
BB Z B EE o A SE AN Bl as
ZaHmE

Group
£
2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
Mt YT oo
Revenue WA 2,910,406 2,899,647
Other income oAb A
Bank interest income SRATA BB A 1,376 1,215
Dividend income from listed gk 8 LA
available-for-sale investments Z BB WA 8,414 6,815
Rental income e A 1,215 1,900
Others F s 4,279 7,621
15,284 17,551
Gains W2
Investment gains® B W 5 257 217
Fair value gains: AT
Available-for-sale investments GRS Ry
(transfer from equity on disposal) (B W5 B A 2 ) 24,182 8,655
Financial assets at fair value through N TEE BB AR
profit or loss B 4 A 2,824 2,827
Gain on disposal of items of property, HMEWmE - W &SHEER
plant and equipment, net Z Wt FHE - 12,504
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B 2 W) 2 W s 33 - 4,724
27,263 28,927
42,547 46,478
* Investment gains comprise net gains from currency-linked deposits * ¥ W A £ W B 8 7 O WL 2R 149,000 7T

of HK$149,000 (2013: HK$45,000) and net exchange gain on cash
and cash equivalents of HK$108,000 (2013: HK$172,000).

172,000¥7C)

(R —=4F 45,0008 00) KB4 K B4 4 {H
JH H 2 3 56U 5108,0008 0 (B — =4 ¢

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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6. FINANCE COSTS (397 % S
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: B R A AT
Group
£ 3L |
2014 2013
—E—iE —E =4
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Interest on bank and trust receipt JR AR A B Z SR AT K
loans wholly repayable within five years 55 56 W48 82 5k Al &L 15,185 18,577
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. B BL & A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AR 2 BRABLET A T B (FEA)
(crediting):
Group
e
2014 2013
ot Sk 2 R4
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt it W T T BT T
Cost of inventories sold CEFEZ A 1,914,278 2,013,336
Depreciation e 14 55,069 51,810
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT 1 Hb AL B K
payments Z MR 16 3,344 3,281
Amortisation of non-current livestock ESU iR g ¥ 3] = 2
Minimum lease payments under operating == #i J #5= 48 % #l &
leases in respect of land and buildings — Z (Kl 4 160,309 148,691
Auditors’ remuneration % Bl T 4 3,863 3,226
Employee benefit expense (excluding 18 B %5 F) B 3 (OF L6
directors’ and chief executive’s HERBEEHITBRANER
remuneration (note 8)): 4 (M 7E8)) -
Wages, salaries, allowances and T~ #H4 > #Hii K
benefits in kind T A 309,970 275,443
Pension scheme contributions®* FEY N R G 17,728 15,527
327,698 290,970
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBLHT A (4)
Group
E |
2014 2013
—F—WiE —E =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt it T T BT T

Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off WM K&

of items of property, plant RWIEE ZEE

and equipment, net (Wek) » 3,386 (12,504)
Foreign exchange differences, net [ . 2% B > A (2,003) 2,585
Rental income on an investment property 5% ¥ ¥ 3£ Z #l 4 WA W A #¢

less direct operating expenses 2 ¥ B 52720,0009% 7

of HK$720,000 (2013: HK$646,000) (ZF— =48 1 646,000% 70) (495) (1,254)
Impairment of available-for-sale investments* W] 4 t 8 8 % Z Jf fi* 418 13,627
Decrease/(increase) in fair value less AFAEWA () W E

estimated point-of-sale costs H B IRF 2 o A A B o Y

attributable to:

— physical change on non-current - FEHEEZBEED

livestock - (8)

— price change on non-current livestock —JRE M E A KT - 1

Impairment of trade receivables* JE W B 5 B ik Dl A 23 60 1,035

Impairment of slow-moving inventories*** iff 8§ 77 £ Jill {f++* 1,025 618

Impairment of goodwill* T A Y A 17 - 1,942

Impairment of non-current livestock™** I H B A = 66

*  The impairment of available-for-sale investments, goodwill and o AR - PR RERE SRR AT
trade receivables are included in “Other operating expenses” in the BRERGEAHEEE LT HAEEE TN -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

#% At 31 March 2014, the Group had no forfeited contributions sk A TRPULEZH Z+—H o A5 5 8 e A
available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in future kAT B AR DR R AR AR IR AR e RE BBtk (%
years (2013: Nil). — AR ) o

##% The impairment of slow-moving inventories and non-current st WS RIMARIEEMEERMEC BEHR A
livestock is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated ek L2 THE AN -

statement of profit or loss.

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

o g0 B dpe AT BN B 4

FRNEFREHTEARMELBTEH GRS
P A R (T3 B 1) e 2 B LA (T kv
S L) e A 8 0 ) A0 A9 - 90 o A AR A T 4B

follows:

2014 2013
e Sy 11 ZE=H
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T BT
Fees a4 720 720

Other emoluments: At 1 4
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ F4 -~ B8 R EWH 25 8,186 8,078
Pension scheme contributions IR 4 w1 22 gk 215 213
8,401 8,291
9,121 9,011

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

(a) BFEPfTES

FRNOHBTHILIEATEFRZAENT

2014 2013

- K 2 EE

HK$’000 HK$°000

W T BT T

Leung Mei Han R 80 80
Chan Yuk Sang, Peter 5 R 80 80
Tsunao Kijima A B A4 80 80
240 240

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

8. M W4T BN B4 (50

(b) BATHE S R BT H

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions remuneration
Wid o~ WM k4

w4 B A 3 w3 Z ik 3 T A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT HHT HHT BT

2014 ZR— M
Tai Tak Fung, Stephen s 80 3,840 2 3,922
Wu Mei Yung, Quinly* B 80 1,440% 63 1,583
Man Wing Cheung, Ellis SCKHE 80 - 4 84
Yip Wai Keung R 80 722 40 842
Wu Wing Biu K 80 1,077 53 1,210
Nam Chi Ming, Gibson [ ] 80 1,107 53 1,240
480 8,186 215 8,881

2013 R D
Tai Tak Fung, Stephen W 80 3,840/ 4 3,924
Wu Mei Yung, Quinly* WIS 80 1,440% 63 1,583
Man Wing Cheung, Ellis SCAK R 80 - 4 84
Yip Wai Keung R 80 722 40 842
Wu Wing Biu 1 K 80 1,008%* 51 1,139
Nam Chi Ming, Gibson B 80 1,068 51 1,199
480 8,078 213 8,771

EES

ook

Included in the above salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
is an estimated rental of HK$3,840,000 (2013: HK$3,840,000)
for a director’s quarter owned by the Group.

Included in the above salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
is a discretionary bonus of HK$270,000 (2013: HK$270,000).

Included in the above salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
is a discretionary bonus of HK$90,000 (2013: HK$60,000).
Effective 1 April 2014, total annual remuneration, excluding
discretionary bonus, is HK$1,158,000.

Included in the above salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
is a discretionary bonus of HK$120,000 (2013: HK$120,000).
Effective 1 April 2014, total annual remuneration excluding
discretionary bonus, is HK$1,158,000.

Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly is also the chief executive of the
Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2013: Nil).

A LR bl A~ HERG X B A 2% T AR
%l%ﬁ&ﬁ:ﬁ%%%f&ﬁizﬁéﬂu
Z f w5 AL 423,840,000 0 (—F —=
3,840,000%7C) °

o AEER AR A HE R B A 25 T g
B4 %5270,0008 76 (ZF— =4F : 270,000
W)

s QLG A R X B A 28 T I
15 AE4190,0008 76 (R —=4E : 60,0009
JG) o P F—PULEPH —H B h - FE
S T A8 O 8 56 99 1% A6 A1) 251,158,000
Wt °

s ALEERY LR A~ HEE R B A 25 T G
1E41120,000% 70 (=T —=4F : 120,000
Jt) o R F—UEP H —H B R - G4E
57 T 4 AR OR 4 355 199 5 46 41) 251,158,000
WG °

o OWIRAR L AAREEZRNITEE -

N > 25 R AT BON BB AR R
ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬂ;ﬁiﬂwmﬁéﬁﬂlﬁﬁwﬂﬁ =%
— AR )

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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9.

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2013: four) directors which included the chief executive, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2013:
one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

o 355 M e v O R

R o T fn I B R B LA O fr (B
BEATHRAR) (ZR—=4  UfL) » ZE#HF
Z e REHUR B SCHERES o R — L (R =
A2 L) B 0 B (S R A4 R g e Bt
FATBN ) AR B2 SRR F

Group
%M

2014 2013
R4 SR =g
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT o o
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 ~ Bt 05 X EWH 35 2,713 2,039
Pension scheme contributions PEYY o | 96 90
2,809 2,129

The highest paid non-director and non-chief executive employee
whose remuneration fell within the band of HK$2,500,001 to
HK$3,000,000 (2013: HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000).

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

P E = I AR AT BN B B Z 4
2,500,001 7C %3,000,000% 76 2 AL 7] (—
F— =4 :2,000,001% 78 %2,500,000% 75) °

10. i 138

T 8 P A5 B 7% 35 4T R T s O A 2 A T M R
PR 3216.5% (B — =4 1 16.5%) Z B FRAE
WA o 0 Hb i 2 M SRR 5 A 2 B TE AR B8
AR 40 S B K ) A e L BLAT R
REHH o

Group
£ |
2014 2013
S g
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T BT T
Current — Hong Kong -

Charge for the year AR AR B IE 33,906 27,734
Current — Elsewhere B — A s [

Charge for the year AT JE BLIH 4,964 6,166
Overprovision in prior years 20 A A B B A (194) (292)
Deferred (note 29) AEIE (Hfii£29) 992 (71)
Total tax charge for the year AR 2Z BB 32 39,668 33,537

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED e
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. B 738 (#45)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax TR B AR 23 ) B A S A W AR B R
at the statutory rates for the countries/jurisdictions in which the VA IR 2 W B R E A HL I A R B B i s A
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the Z B IE S K DL MR OB R R S 2 B OE S Hh
tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the W DL Rdd PR3 (B 3k e Bl %) BRET PR Bl R
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax HHRWMT -

rate, are as follows:

Group
£
2014 2013
R4 R =R
HKS$’000 % HK$°000 %
W T BT T

Profit before tax %: Bt Wiy 43 1) 191,948 140,740
Tax at applicable tax rates e P B AT L Z B 28,383 14.8 21,724 15.4
Adjustments in respect of current B 2 Bl T A S

tax of previous periods i (194) 0.1) (292) (0.2)
Profits and losses attributable JREAY B 28 2 W] ¥4

to associates g (1,526) (0.8) (1,902) (1.4)
Income not subject to tax BERBLZ WA (1,571) (0.8) (3,120) (2.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax Aol HAE B E f Rz 3 2,525 1.3 2,826 2.0
Effect of withholding tax of 5% on MBS 0% AL H

distributable profits of the Group’s Z MG AR Z

subsidiaries in Mainland China Al A R A 2 114 0.1 43 -
Tax losses utilised from previous periods Bj Fi 4 A 1 [ = % JE i 40 (5,770) 3.0) (7,371) (5.2)
Deferred tax assets not recognised A TR 2 9 A AT 13,520 7.0 16,444 11.7
Others HAty 4,187 2.2 5,185 3.7
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate  $% A< 4 [ B B Bl 3 51 450

Z B 39,668 20.7 33,537 23.8

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to JE A W 4% A\ 2 BETE 364,463,000 00 (&
HK$4,463,000 (2013: HK$3,110,000) is included in “Share of —=4F 3,110,000 00) RGN F A HEEE
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of Z AL B AR RN LGB IA -
profit or loss.
Certain subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China are entitled ZAS A5 [ A b R e 2 2 T B R A R AT A M B
to preferential tax rates granted by the relevant authorities to BRI T IEEBIE o

these subsidiaries.

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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11.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a profit of
HK$32,143,000 (2013: HK$30,623,000) which has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)).

11.

7 2y W) HE i AT A A

BECZ-WE=ZA=+—HILEEZRAT
BE 25 B A % MEAG 58 A e A B 3% B 5 AR A
Z W 9 2 8 0)32,143,0008 8 (R —=
4 1 30,623,000%70) (B #E32(b)) ©

12. DIVIDENDS 12. B &
2014 2013
R4 SR
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT W oo
Interim — HK2.0 cents rh BH — 4 3% 8 JE2 .0 v Il

(2013: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share TR 2.0 7,758 7,760

Proposed final — HK6.0 cents el AR ) — A R 3 2 Jz 6. 0 A1l
(2013: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZF—=4 0 5.08A4) 23,275 19,395
31,033 27,155

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
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13. 76 2 wi) 15 S0 i P A7 5 A B Ok

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

A ()

(continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based B J FEAS T B A TR IR R S S e -
on:
2014 2013
—F—WiE EEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T BT T
Earnings A
Profit attributable to ordinary equity S e R AR e 4 S ) A
holders of the Company, used in the ZARAE G BRERIR &
basic and diluted earnings per share JRE A i )
calculation 160,137 110,779
Number of shares
ety ¥ H
2014 2013
=k —ER S
Shares JBt By
Weighted average number of ordinary B PR B AR R R P A 2
shares in issue during the year used OB ERZ
in the basic and diluted earnings per JinHE - 24 8
share calculation 387,909,640 388,308,330

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y13 ~ B Bk i
Group HH
Leasehold Furniture,
Land and improve- fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
buildings ments equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
L il e Wik
b1 53 B KERRH RS fi ERTH At
HES000 HES'000 HES'000 HES000 HES000 HES000 HK$'000
EW T WL EWFL EWFL B FL EWFL EWTL
31 March 2014 ZZ-WEEAZTH
At31 March 2013 and RZBZ-ZEZAZT-HR
at 1 April 2013: ZE-SRERA-R
Cost or valuation AN 480,428 14311 107,863 215,525 41,01 1,397 995,451
Accumulated depreciation AiHTE (134,133) (50,195) (82,124 (134,107) (31,058) - (431,617)
Net carrying amount e 346,295 93,016 25,739 81,418 15,969 1,397 563,834
At 1 April 2013, net of REF-ZENH -0
accumulated depreciation eI EiT 346,295 93,016 25,739 81,418 15969 1397 563,834
Additions e 2451 23,903 5,612 8,207 5,250 13,932 59,364
Disposalsfwrite-off th /s - (2,687) (686) (188) (19) - (3,640)
Depreciation provided ERTHEE
during the year ik (12,507) (17,195) (8,124) (10,916) (6,327) - (55,069)
Exchange realignment (3 2m) (257) 6] (493) 2 (203) (1,237)
At31 March 2014, net of RZFZ-WEZAZ1-H>
accumulated depreciation BaRZiE 335,962 96,780 22,536 78,028 14,820 15,126 563,252
At31 March 2014: RER-WEZR=Z4—H
Cost or valuation ok A 482,328 159,718 111497 220,763 50,959 15,126 1,040,391
Accumulated depreciation e (146,366) (62,938) (88,961) (142,735) (36,139) - 477,139)
Net carrying amount TR 335,962 96,780 22,536 78,028 14,820 15,126 563,252
Analysis of cost or valuation: RS M
At cost Bk 397,328 159,718 111,497 220,763 50,959 15,126 955,391
At 31 March 1994 valuation R=AANEZAZ4—H
I 85,000 - - - - - 85,000
482,328 159,718 111,497 220,763 50,959 15,126 1,040,391
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BAY
BE B I
Year ended 31 March 2014 RE_-F—W4E=H=+—H L4 ¥
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% -~ W B (4)
(continued)
Group £H
Leasehold Furniture,
Land and improve- fixtures and Plant and Motor ~ Construction
buildings ments equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
L il = frfi FOR &t
Rits ¥E RERGRH Rk it ERIE a3t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
bl aon bl aon Vi aon Vi aon Vi aon Vi aon bl o
31 March 2013 It Sty e
At 1 April 2012; RZF-ZENA—H:
Cost or valuation ks f 479,080 124,842 108,930 233,646 44,926 6,419 997,843
Accumulated depreciation e (127,017) (44,666) (78.556) (147,780) (30,635) - (428,654)
Net carrying amount TR 352,063 80,176 30374 85,366 14291 6419 569,189
At 1 April 2012, net of g St i gt I
accumulated depreciation ERRRHTE 352,063 80,176 30374 85.866 1421 6,419 569,189
Additions hE 1,355 29,926 5,698 6,212 6,549 4746 54,486
Disposals/write-off /5 (7.365) (3.549) (2,150 (10) (292) - (13,366)
Depreciation provided ERCHEE
during the year bZiN (12,480) (14,680) (8.634) (11,273) (4143) - (51.810)
Transfers 11 9875 - - - - (9875) -
Exchange realignment R 2847 1143 #1 623 164 107 5,33
At 31 March 2013, net of REF-ZE=H=4-0
accumulated depreciation CHRRHTE 346,205 93,016 25,739 81,418 15,969 1397 563,834
AL31 March 2015 REZF-ZEZA=-1:
Cost or valuation kg A 480428 143,211 107,863 215,525 41011 1,397 995451
Accumulated depreciation itk (134,133) (50,195) (82,124) (134,107) (31,058) - 31617
Net carrying amount R 346,095 93,016 25,739 81,418 15,969 1397 563,834
Analysis of cost or valuation: BR S A :
At cost ek 395428 143,211 107,863 215,925 41007 1,397 910,451
At 31 March 1994 valuation R-AANEZAZF—H
I 85,000 - - - - - 85,000
480,428 143,211 107,863 215,925 41007 1,397 995,451

Z 2 — M EFE W

o M oW £ M A W

A
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and
buildings in Mainland China included above are held under

medium term leases and are situated in:

14. Y93 ~ W55 Be sl ()

e e A AR T A 2 Ll R bl DA R
B K B 22 A 45 b S AR A R R SR A R DA T
Yk

At cost At valuation Total
AR e Al i A5k
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT o T or BT

31 March 2014 R -WAE=ZH=1—H
Hong Kong s 130,042 85,000 215,042
Mainland China F g K e 267,286 = 267,286
397,328 85,000 482,328

31 March 2013 TR -=ZE=H=1+—H
Hong Kong EaE: 130,042 85,000 215,042
Mainland China TN < 265,386 - 265,386
395,428 85,000 480,428

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings, which are
situated in Hong Kong, were revalued at 15 July 1993, by C.Y.
Leung & Company Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers. The leasehold land and buildings were revalued at open
market value, based on their existing use. Since the year ended
31 March 1994, no further revaluations of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings have been carried out, as the Group has relied
upon the exemption granted under the transitional provisions in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 from the requirement to carry out
future revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which
were stated at valuation at that time.

At 31 March 2013, certain buildings of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,498,000 were pledged to secure general banking facilities

granted to that non-wholly-owned subsidiary (note 28).
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A 55 [ R AR B 7 7 v 2 R - B AT > TR
—hWAEZELCA T HAEB I HES G E
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b Je M TS ¥ BLAT P A& 2 4 B T B 5 e A 1l
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L > p R A R T 45 A v R R B BB 165880A
B2 0 U AR S B A H AR DUE A A
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

15. e E& P E

Group
£ |

2014 2013
S g
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year SRR Z MR THE 19,998 19,669
Exchange realignment FE 5a, i %% (40) 329
Carrying amount at end of year AR ZIRTHEAE 19,958 19,998

The Group’s investment property represents an industrial
property in Mainland China. The Group’s investment property
was revalued on 31 March 2014 based on a valuation
performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$19,958,000. Each year,
the Group’s finance team decides to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s finance team has discussions with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when

the valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to an associate of the Group
under an operating lease, further summary details of which are

included in notes 35(a) and 37(a)(iv) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment property are

included on page 172 of the annual report.

ARG R ER—EAR P B KR T
¥ REFMZHEWHEN _F—NFE=H
= H AR S S R A A i S
T8 B 5] HEAT 2 A 16 T B 4% %% 19,958,000
JC o AR > AHE ) Z B I KV SE T A A B A
L B 2 A AR ) W 0 SE AR HR A A o SR IR AT LA
LEFERE £ BF NAIVYE-EF EE & Vi
HE o il fiEL Rl PR R A 5 I R B R BT T
AT A AR > AR S5 ] ¥ B 5 1 IOK 8 LA A1 P
AT Al L 0 B R B A SR AT R A

BB W 3 DL AE B LA TE SR 5 7 AC 4R 2 0
O3] o A BRSO B A MY 35 (a) K37 (a)
(iv) °

ACER P 1 S 2 AR R AR SR 172 -

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March
2014:

15. B ¥ W 3 (A1)

BT

TERANALEZEYER -F -WE=A
=+ HZA AR

Fair value measurement using

Significant unobservable

Recurring fair value inputs
measurement for: (Level 3)
AP R

R B

DFHEHM 4 i AL
N AR GE=M)
HK$’000

BT T

Industrial property T¥W*E 19,958

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level
3.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

N 55— O R TN S RS PR
B> SR = 3 S O\ S 2 A DL

B NSBB8 = g 2 o AR A R R

Industrial
property
TEWE
HKS$’000
BHTI

Carrying amount at beginning of year AR ) Z W THI A
Exchange realignment [ 58,3

Carrying amount at end of year R ZIREAE

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 15. G W2 ()
Fair value hierarchy (continued) A2 R (5)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key T 5 2 4 Sl LT R D A B A e
inputs to the valuation of the investment property: i A\ AR A B -
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
A4 % ol KA W 9B 5% Y i A i OmAE T3 %)
Industrial property Direct Market rental value HK$24
T¥M*E capitalisation (per square metre and per month) 2478
method WG R (B ok EER)
HEE AR L Term yield (per annum) 5.75%
AR R (FF4E)
Reversionary yield (per annum) 6.00%
W R (B4R
The Group has determined that the current use of the industrial AEFOHEEZHETEWE(BRZHE A2
property is the highest and best use at the measurement date. H¥zmEm ERERS -
Under the direct capitalisation method, a property’s fair value WIEHEEEARLE s WEAFAEIIRIEZDE
is estimated based on the normalised net operating income it 35 AR 2 B — Ak 3 2R W\ B3 DA & AN AL BE 2R
generated by the property, which is divided by the capitalisation {5t o
rate.
A significant increase (decrease) in the market rental value would TG A KRR I (WA ) BB IREMENA
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the SEAE KR G (P A ) o 4R B e 3 R F 17 i e
investment property. A significant increase (decrease) in the term R ZKER M R BB EN AP
yield rate and reversionary yield rate in isolation would result in a (KR A () -

significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment

property.
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. T AF 1 3 AL 1k
Group
M

2014 2013

e 2Lk 2 R =g

HK$’000 HK$’000

YT BT T

Carrying amount at beginning of year AR H) 2 Hik T AE 116,458 119,472

Disposal during the year ENHE = (1,672)

Recognised during the year AN TR (3,344) (3,281)

Exchange realignment [ 5, 34 4% 179) 1,939

Carrying amount at end of year T A ¢ 2 R T 112,935 116,458
Current portion included in prepayments, BHEFETEATZIE - K&K

deposits and other receivables F At R WK T i B 4 3,290) (3,312)

Non-current portion I VR By FB 43 109,645 113,146

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments above relate to
leasehold land which is held under medium term leases and is

situated in Mainland China.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group acquired 5%}
TR R A R A F (“GZ Panxi”), which operates a restaurant
on a piece of land (the “Land”) in Liwan District, Guangzhou,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). At 31 March 2014,
the carrying value of the Land was HK$45,201,000 (2013:
HK$46,682,000). In the opinion of the directors, based on the
advice from the Group’s external legal advisors, GZ Panxi has
the right to use the Land and occupy the buildings thereon for its
restaurant operations, and upon the payment of the land premium,
the Group can obtain the land use right certificate for the Land.

At 31 March 2013, certain leasehold land of a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,474,000 were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to that non-wholly-owned subsidiary (note 28).
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A AR R bt 2 B A b A B K B
AB > PRI > WAL BB o

KEZZRELE=ZA=ZT—HILEER > K4
) W Y M T R K R ) (TR e
Bl) o BEMMRAE P EE N RIEFE (T E])
JE M 7 v I — i e ([ L) WK
W_F—NE=ZA=Z+—H » Z L RmHE
#4545,201,000% 70 (= F — =4 1 46,682,000
JC) o M ALEEZ GAERBENER  #F
WA o TN R A R A X AN R
RSB RZH » LR A L % » A&
AR 1) WY R e 2 e R o

WoF—-ZH£=A=+—H0 > ML EHE
P Ja 2 ) A5 L b o B G 3 40 1,474,0009
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

17. GOODWILL 17. B 5%
Group
eS|
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 April 2012: P_F—ZHMH—H :
Cost BA 39,527
Accumulated impairment 2t wiE (1,350)
Net carrying amount R T 1 38,177
Cost at 1 April 2012, net of accumulated W —ZAFNH —HZRA
impairment Com B B g 38,177
Impairment during the year (note 7) WAL (BE7) (1,942)
Exchange realignment FEE 50, 3% 2% 574
At 31 March 2013 HER-EZHE=ZH=4H 36,809
At 1 April 2013: W_R =N —H :
Cost A 40,101
Accumulated impairment HEHEE (3,292)
Net carrying amount MR T 36,809
Cost at 1 April 2013, net of accumulated M —ZFENH—HZ R
impairment [R5 K 36,809
Exchange realignment [E 58, i) % (70)
At 31 March 2014 BoE-WE=ZA=1+—H 36,739
At 31 March 2014: BEF-EZH =4
Cost BA 40,031
Accumulated impairment B AR A (3,292)
Net carrying amount IR TG 1 36,739
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
units is as follows:

17. v & (%)

[Eg 1 RUES

43 WS % B 4 A A B AL 1B 2 R TR A
T

Trading business GZ Panxi operation Poultry business Others Total
UET ] BOM R B FERH ) it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 014 2013 014 2013
SR-WE CF-CE OCR-WE RS CR-mE SRS CR-pE RS C%-mNE CR-cE
HKS$000  HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$°000  HKS'000  HK$°000  HKS$'000 ~ HKS$000  HK$'000
#WFL  ENTC  EWFL ENTL #WTFL ENTL #WTL #NTL #NTL ENTFL
Carrying amount of goodwill 1% Z IR {4 17,7 17,806 12,769 12,795 4218 427 1981 1,981 36,739 36,809

GZ Panxi operation and trading business cash-generating units

The recoverable amount of the GZ Panxi operation cash-
generating unit and trading business cash-generating unit have
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 13%. The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of both cash-generating units beyond

the five-year period is 0%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the GZ
Panxi operation cash-generating unit and trading business cash-
generating unit for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. The
following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,

increased for expected efficiency improvements.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and

reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Purchase price inflation — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to inventory price inflation is the forecast price indices

during the budget year from where inventories are sourced.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on expected
efficiency improvements, discount rates and purchase price

inflation are consistent with external information sources.
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. ¥ & (4)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) T 2 A3 ()
Poultry business cash-generating unit KB FE B %A
The recoverable amount of the poultry business cash-generating KRB LB 4 A WAL Z W IR el 3K 8 5 M 4%
unit was based on fair value less costs of disposal. Consistent to AFEREERAGHE - FHERAEREE
the external sources of information, management regards that the B 4 i A B R B =2 = s PR) B S R O [ 3k 0
prices of the land relating to the poultry business cash-generating A% i A MR > PRI T S ML B 4 A B
unit, being the most sensitive to its recoverable amount, is the O A8 kB AR 2 AR o I B AR Rt
key assumption to the determination of the fair value less costs —H - RXEBEEBSEEHMZ L OR ZF
of disposal of this cash-generating unit. The land of the poultry —WE=ZH = —H d 8 53 G B A% A Rl
business cash-generating unit was valued on 31 March 2014 by WP RAT AT PR W R T L LR AT AN A -
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent professionally Bb 7% 38 A AL Vi 4 A7 A 4 R 7 6 7 40 B T 35 A A%
qualified valuers, using the direct comparison approach. This SR R 2 PR A E BRI 2 25 BAE
means that the valuation performed by the valuers is based on EYN R

18

active market prices, significantly adjusted for the difference in

the nature, location or condition of the specific land.

Based on the significant inputs used, the fair value measurement WEFHZEREAME > FBHATFEGZEAE
is categorised as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. During AFEHEEASPELEBEZE - FER B @K
the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, 5B 3 R A AR & > SR =R
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The following significant g A B Y 2 UL o AR LM —F— Y
unobservable input was used in determining the fair value of the FEA=ZT—HZAPE > DN ERATE
land as at 31 March 2014. S NEPARA
Significant unobservable valuation input ~ Range R B AEE 4 [

LN
Price per square metre HK$331 to HK$513 7 J5 R AE#E 33T ES13W T
A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated price per square A BHEE S 7 KA A O 3 (B A ) & BB AT
metre would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value. HREEF (R -

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. A & A vl 2 B4

Company
a7

2014 2013
R L g
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost e LT el > R AAE 93,108 93,108
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the Company’s AT RENE E R RE AN Z B E
current assets and current liabilities respectively are unsecured, AF Bt B8 N ) Ak JE W MERCHT - S B s HEFRE M

interest-free and repayable on demand. B o

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. J/% B ) 2 vil 2 L ¥ (4)

AR T Z T ZEHE A A T

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to
registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
C#fT 72 5] AV 2
R Ve W ik ARl
4 Ml kBB e B0 R Bt A T H# Il & TR
Cowboy Food Company Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 - 85.0 Manufacturing of
Limited i 6,000,0003% G peanut products
AR A RAT TEA: £ i A
Crowne Profits Limited* British Virgin US$1 - 100.0 Investment holding
Islands 1378 REER
S I LT B
E-Options Technology Limited* British Virgin Us$1 - 100.0 Property holding
Islands 1378 VIESCYd
S 8 IR LT B
Eat & International (H.K.) Hong Kong HK$11,500,000 - 51.0 Restaurant operations
Co., Limited* i (2013: HK$7,000,000) RERE
KB E A7 B ]« 11,500,000% 7
(Z%—=
7,000,000% 75 )
Ever Media Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
i 10,0009 72 B
Fancy Talent Limited* Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 - 100.0 Marketing of snack foods
TR AR A i 100,000,000% 7 UN-FAIE
B
Four Seas Enterprises British Virgin US$20,000 100.0 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited* Islands 20,0003 7¢ /8801
S 8 IR LT B
Four Seas Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 100.0 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited B 10,0009 7t BEER
VO£ A R A
Four Seas China Holdings British Virgin US$1,000,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
Limited* Islands 1,000,00058 7 B M
VG 4 A A ] B i IR LT B
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. BB A vl 2 B (%)

(continued)
AN Z BEWEAFGERNT : (8)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to
registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
B4 ¢0) 7 i) M A 2
i3V Ave VR Hak
H Xl K8 B 80 R B i Hik Il 4% TLEEH
Four Seas Mercantile Limited Hong Kong (i) Ordinary HK$200 - 100.0 Trading in snack
5 A A B (i) Non-voting deferred foods, confectionery
HK$20,000,000 and beverages
(i) %% 4 2009 7 MR R
(i) 416 48 55 iz 8 5%
BSR4
20,000,000% &
Four Seas Property Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
Holdings Limited B 50,000,000% 7t BE R
VO 3 A R
Four Seas Confectionery PRC/ HK$28,320,000 - 100.0 Manufacturing
(Shantou) Company Mainland China (2013: HK$23,320,000) of cakes
Limited* A il P PN 28,320,000% 7¢ BREAE
I BTG 4 R A ]+ A (ZR—-=4:
23,320,000% 72
Four Seas (Suzhou) PRC/ US$16,500,000 - 100.0 Manufacturing
Food Co., Ltd.* A Mainland China 16,500,0003 7C of beverages
P () £ A PR 7] A G PN i
Four Seas (Shantou) Foods PRC/ HK$30,500,000 - 100.0 Property holding
Industrial Park Management Mainland China 30,500,000% 7C LES L
Co., Ltd.* A VAP
I £ T3
A L R A
Four Seas (Yang Shan) PRC/ HK$20,000,000 - 100.0 Property holding
Development Company Mainland China 20,000,000% ¢ LESCL
Limited A il VPN
DO (5 L) 8 A R ] A
Four Seas Foods PRC/ HK$96,000,000 - 100.0 Trading in
(Shantou) Co., Ltd.* A Mainland China 96,000,000% JC confectionery
VY £ s A RRA ]+ A gl DN and food products
BER R
285
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

18. J/% B ) 2 vil 2 L ¥ (4)

AN F Z EEEHE AR T ()

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to
registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
C#fT A ) HEAN B 2
03 D 3 1 YR HAlk
H il kB0 e 8 R JBe A i H# h % TR
Four Seas (Hebei) PRC/ HK$24,000,000 - 100.0 Processing
Food Company Limited* » Mainland China 24,000,000% G of chestnuts
PO G ) £ A B A ] A g K B ErmI
Four Seas Logistics Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100.0 Provision of
Company Limited bR 200,000% 7C transportation services
VG Y4 R T
Four Seas Catering Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
Enterprises Company B 10,0009 72 BB R
Limited
Pk 4 A A
Four Seas Confectionery PRC/ HK$7,000,000 - 80.0 Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* A Mainland China 7,000,0003 7C of snack foods
O AR (TR AR ] A iV DN NEBE
Four Seas (Qingyuan) Tourism PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 100.0 Property holding
Development Company Limited* »#  Mainland China AR #20,000,0007C and restaurant
P (7 2 ) i i 5 Gl PN operations
AR A MR R
BBERE
Guang Dong Fourseas PRC/ RMB35,300,000 - 100.0 Trading in frozen
Frozen Food Products Mainland China (2013: RMB20,300,000) food products and
Co., Ltd.* A o K B A B#35,300,00078 snack foods
R Y A4 A (ZR—=4: EWE R
R ] A A B #20,300,0007) MEZB S
Guangzhou Four Seas Catering PRC/ HK$7,500,000 - 100.0 Restaurant operations
Co., Ltd.* A Mainland China (2013: HK$2,500,000) RERE
O 7 I A R T o K B 7,500,000% 7
(ZF—Z4
2,500,000% 7¢)
Guangzhou Sushi Oh Catering PRC/ HK$6,000,000 - 33.2%% Restaurant operations
Co., Ltd.* A Mainland China 6,000,000% 7 RELE
o 5 ) S AR A R AR A Rk B
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

18. J/% B ) 2 vil 2 B ¥ (A1)

AR T Z EEEHE AR T 2 ()

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to
registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
C#fT A ) MEAN B 2
ik b,/ BBk HAW
H il kBN e 8 R JBe A i H# [GEES TR
Hong Kong Confectionery Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
Company Limited B 7,000,003 7C BBV
bR A A
Hong Kong Ham Holdings Hong Kong HK$20 - 100.0 Manufacturing
Limited il 20378 and packaging of
U R M A PR ) ham and ham-related
products
HER A%
KB B AT B
KB E
Hong Kong Biscuit Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 - 99.3 Investment holding
(International) Limited* P 40,000,000% 7t BEER
Tl B (13 BE) F7 A o)«
Homeright Properties Limited* British Virgin US$1 - 100.0 Holding of trademarks
FMEREFA WA Islands 1378 FEA bR
S i I LT B
IFSCO Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$57,200,000 100.0 - Investment holding
i 57,200,000% 7 B
J.P. Inglis Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100.0 Trading in
SR LA RAT i 1,000,000% 7 food materials
BB S
KTC Corporation*® Japan JPY10,000,000 - 100.0 Trading in cakes
JEB 5 B 7 o p ok ik HA 10,000,000 H [ ERHS
Four Seas Candy Company Limited Hong Kong HK$50,550,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
VY SR A R il 50,550,000% 7 (2013: 82.5) /8800

(formerly known as

Kanro Four Seas Foods

Company Limited)

CHAR 2 HF 4L DO 90 & B B )

= g E e

oW &% M oAF R oA A
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Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 Hie i W Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

18. J/% B ) 2 vil 2 L ¥ (4)

AN F Z EEEHE AR T ()

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to
registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
C#fT A ) HEAN B 2
03 D 3 1 YR HAW
H il kB0 e 8 R JBe A i H# h % TR
Four Seas Candy (Shantou) PRC/ HK$50,203,380 - 100.0 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* 7 Mainland China 50,203,3803 G (2013: 82.5) of candies
VO IR (Rl BE) AR ] A g K B BRI
(formerly known as
Kanro Four Seas Foods
(Shantou) Co., Ltd.)
(A 2 HF 42 P 4%
(Qrs) A WA )
Kung Tak Lam Shanghai Hong Kong HK$3,660,000 - 99.0 Restaurant operations
Vegetarian Cuisine Limited BRs 3,660,000 7 RERS
HER LR EARAR
Li Fook (Qingdao) PRC/ US$3,970,000 - 100.0 Manufacturing of noodles
Foods Co., Ltd.* A Mainland China 3,970,000 7 TRk
Pl (5 &) R AR iV PN
Luck Healthy Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100.0 Property holding
& 170 W IR
Matchless Bakery Company British Virgin HK$20,000,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
Limited* Islands 20,000,000 7 BRI
A S 1 AT R A 5 J g 4 B B
More Ways Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
SHEFARAT i 10,000% 7 (2013: 66.7) BBV
Men Taishou Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100.0 Restaurant operations
YR A R AT & IR BRBERE
Namtien Noodle Limited* Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 51.0 Manufacturing
R R A A R i 1,000 7& of noodles
Vg3
New Kondo Trading Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100.0 Trading in Japanese
Company Limited B 1,000,000% 7C food materials

EREAHRAR
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(continued)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

18. J/% B ) 2 vil 2 B ¥ (A1)

AAFZ FEEHE AR RO T ()

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to
registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
C#fT A ) MEAN B 2
ik b,/ BBk [iFi1:4
H il kBN e 8 R JBe A i H# Il 4% TR
Nico Four Seas (Shantou) PRC/ HK$28,000,000 - 51.0 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China 28,000,000% G of seaweed products
A5 DBl B A R 2 3 A gk B ERA MR
Nico-Nico Four Seas Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$28,000,000 - 51.0 Investment holding
1 P A A i 28,000,000% 7¢ B
Okashi Land (Macau) Macau MOP500,000 - 100.0 Retailer of
Company Limited* il 500,000% 9 & snack foods
BTGRP A R A MEZRE
Papochou Holdings Limited* British Virgin HK$15,000,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
T AR Islands 15,000,000% 7t BB
5 4 B
Restaurant Shiki Limited Hong Kong HK$3,200,000 - 100.0 Restaurant operations
i 3,200,000 7 RERE
Shenzhen Matchless Food PRC/ HK$12,300,000 - 100.0 Bakery and
Co., Ltd.* A Mainland China 12,300,000% 7t factory operations
IR G VRl PN o4 B O
AR A TRz &
Sushi Pro Limited Hong Kong HK$9,000,000 - 100.0 Investment holding
Fa RARAT il 9,000,0003 ¢ BRI
Shousihuang Restaurant (Shenzhen) PRC/ HK$7,300,000 - 100.0 Restaurant operations
Company Limited* * Mainland China 7,300,000% 70 BRERE
2R (D il VR PN
FREA T« A
Tohato Four Seas Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 - 80.0 Investment holding
Company Limited B 7,000,0009 7t BE R
R DY A R A R
Tsun Fat (Huizhou) PRC/ HK$13,000,000 - 99.3 Manufacturing
Biscuit Factory Limited* * Mainland China 13,000,000% & of biscuits
5 (M) BHC R o B K B LR 3
HRAT

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

18. J/% B ) 2 vil 2 L ¥ (4)

AR T Z EEEHE AR R0 ()

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to
registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
C#fT A ) HEAN B 2
03 D 3 1 YR HAW
H il kB0 e 8 R JBe A i H# h % TR
T & M Advertising Hong Kong HK$20 - 100.0 Advertising agency
Company Limited FRs 20¥70 i 5 Rt
PERBHARA
FA W 5 A A A PRC/ RMB300,000 - 100.0 Trading in
Mainland China A B H500,0007E confectionery
g vk B and food products
BER R
R85
VA i ) A PR 7] A PRC/ HK$10,000,000 - 100.0 Manufacturing
Mainland China 10,000,000 76 of snack foods
o K B MREBE
52 0 P R A R A A PRC/ HK$37,000,000 - 100.0 Manufacturing
Mainland China 37,000,000% G and packaging
K of ham and
ham-related
products
W k%
KBERA B
R R
TR 2 B A A ] A PRC/ HK$8,000,000 - 100.0 Poultry business
Mainland China 8,000,000% JC (2013: 66.7) REBER
oK B
B T PR T K PR ] PRC/ RMB73,959,210 - 99.0¢ Restaurant operations
Mainland China A R¥73,959,2107 RELE
Bk B
TN 7l 35 A AL R A ]+ A PRC/ RMB6,500,000 - 100.0 Raising and sale of
Mainland China A\ B #6,500,0007C peafowls
o R K B il 4 S B
LEREH

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014



18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

18. J/% B ) 2 vil 2 B ¥ (A1)

AAFZ FEEHE AR RO T ()

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable to

registration registered and fully the Company
Name and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities

3% £7} A i) MEAY B 42

GRL) N HHR Hk
k3 EWEL-E R B 80 R B A i i Hik I % TEEH
WEE S RIN) AR A PRC/ HK$5,600,000 - 100.0 Trading in
Mainland China 5,600,000%% JC food materials
G PN gt r A
BEM KB 5 WA = A PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 100.0 Trading in
Mainland China A R ¥#1,000,0007C (2013: 65.0) snack foods
GV PN MNEZEG
VRN B 5 A A = A PRC/ HK$20,000,000 - 100.0 Trading in
Mainland China (2013: HK$2,000,000) snacks and
VAl PN 20,000,000 7C confectionery
(ZR—-=4: MNEREEZES

2,000,000% 7))

ok

AN

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network

Guangzhou Sushi Oh Catering Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and accordingly, is
accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control
over it.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under PRC law.

This subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture under PRC law.

Pursuant to the stock purchase agreement entered into by the Group
and M T 7% 8 [\ RIBOR B0 A & A B BHME BLR  (the “Vendor™)
for the acquisition of GZ Panxi, the Vendor retains 1% shareholding
in GZ Panxi and is not entitled to any share of the profit or loss
in GZ Panxi nor has the right to participate in the operation or

management of GZ Panxi but has the veto right in the following:

- the alteration of the tax registration of GZ Panxi in Liwan
District, Guangzhou, the PRC;

- the alteration of the use of the building occupied by GZ Panxi
other than the Cantonese style restaurant operation; and

- the use of the trademark of GZ Panxi.

ok

AN

= g E e

3 I P A 8 2 K R R B T 4k A BR A A
oAbk 5 2 B B

B FFARKEARAF AR F ~RIELE
Wi I 2 Wl Z W A ) LB A A R 2
F2 0 B A B0 A0 I 8 ] o

% 25 R S 2 W) 7% ¢ v I kA M A A0 R 4%
agiE

% e 2 R 77 4 v B R M A AR AR

R4 A 45 T B T A N BRI A
A BR) (T3 7 1) A0 O e T o 2 i
JB ik BT 7R B 1% 2 S M PR R SR > 4B
T 53 52 B N P 2 AT oy i ) sl 1R > 6 JEAE 2
LI PR AR R B S M R S SR
YL

= BEE RN PR R R T A 8 I B
il s

= RPN PR AN 2 S T 3R 5K
REUSZ S R

- BEMMREEZAA -

oW &% M oAF R oA A
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Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 Hie i W Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19

(continued)

During the year, the Group acquired the remaining equity
interests of certain non-wholly-owned subsidiaries for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$12,110,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group acquired the
remaining 40% equity interest of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
for a cash consideration of HK$123,000, and the economic
benefit attributable to the former non-controlling shareholder on
the disposal of property, plant and equipment of that non-wholly-

owned subsidiary.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

18.

W e A ] 2 B ()

RN > ASHE [ W T I A i HE A R E A R R
TR > ARME A B14:12,110,000% 7T ©

WRE R -=ZH=ZH=1THIREER > A
FEEWE—FIE 2GR W E A A 8T Z40%
RE2S o QA B4 123,000 50 » DA K st Jag % 1l
Fe i ISR B B R I 2 A B A R 4
2~ W B A AR A 25 o

R DA R T A A AR R 2 SR AR R
K5 Bl 4 T 2 TR o i R R
AT > HAE W EES R T R R 2 W e B
WA I -

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBB AT BE
Group
M

2014 2013
e 2Lk 2 R =4
HK$°000 HK$’000
YT T
Goodwill on acquisition P W i e e T 477 477
Share of net assets FEAG & B E 163,914 158,221
164,391 158,698

The amounts due from the associates included in the Group’s
current assets are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances with the
associates are disclosed in notes 23 and 27 to the financial

statements, respectively.
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

19. BB A 2 B ()

(continued)
Particulars of the associates are as follows: /A= I A (1
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group activities
SR AR £y il W 3 7 45 18 M A
1 JBe B ¥ N Bk BRMYE  BAHEMEET R ER S 3 7
Calbee Four Seas Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50.0 Manufacturing
Company Limited i B s of snack foods
R B A R A F N
VY YN A B S (I EE) ARR AT O Paid-up capital PRC/ 50.0 Manufacturing
(formerly known as SR B AR Mainland China of snack foods
Calbee Four Seas (Shantou) g ok VNS iR
Company Limited)
(B8 % 4B Y W (1l 51)
AIRAF)
Guangzhou Meiji Confectionery Paid-up capital PRC/ 30.0 Manufacturing
Company Limited © B e A Mainland China of snack foods
JBE N B IR LR R A R oo LT PN and confectionery
/B BBl R
Guangdong M&F-Yantang Paid-up capital PRC/ 21.0 Manufacturing
Dairy Products Company B B AR Mainland China of ice-cream and
Limited ® PPN dairy products
Jig S Y W e FLSE A R A ] O ES- Y &R |
FE i B0
Meiji-Four Seas Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30.0 Investment holding
Limited @ gl wi Era<giade
W36 U P AR A A @
MFD Holding Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30.0 Investment holding
Limited © W i i T BE B
PUMIFLEA PR A O
Want Want Four Seas Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30.0 Trading in
Company Limited o B B snack foods
TEE FEE Y A R 8 ] i INEH G
Lotte Four Seas Limited ®@® Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30.0 Investment holding
e SN P EEN A R gl i Era<giade
Thai Okashi Land Ordinary shares Thailand 1476 Tnvestment holding
Holdings Ltd. ®@® of THB10,000 each e Ed<gcdie
A5 JB I 10,0007 Bk
Z W
Thai Okashi Land Ltd. ®@® Ordinary shares Thailand 22,20 Retailer of
of THB10,000 each 7= H snack foods

& B 16 10,0007 8k
2%

= g E e

Mz 2h

oW &% M oAF R oA A
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W B R B RE

Year ended 31 March 2014 &E =2 —WE=H=+—H k4

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

Notes:

(i)  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network

(i) The financial years of these associates are not coterminous with
that of the Group and have financial year ending 31 December.
These associates use 31 December as their financial year end date
to conform with their holding companies’ reporting date or statutory

requirements.

(iii) Thai Okashi Land Holdings Ltd. and Thai Okashi Land Ltd. are
subsidiaries of Lotte Four Seas Limited and, accordingly, are
accounted for as associates by virtue of the Group’s significant
influence through the Group’s shareholding in Lotte Four Seas
Limited.

The financial years of the above associates are coterminous with
that of the Group, except for associates as mentioned in note
(ii) above, for which the consolidated financial statements are
adjusted for the material transactions between their financial year

end date and the Group’s year end date.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:

19. BB A 2 B8 ()

Wi :

() 3 Hh A 4 KR S T ek A BR A A
HoAb il 5 2 B %

(i) % S B O R B B4R R B AR AR R R
HMBAEEGHA B ZA=1—H - &%
TZA=St— B A MBI A B A
A B B W 2 B R AT o

(iii) Thai Okashi Land Holdings Ltd.}%Thai Okashi
Land Ltd. ¥ % 4 K DU A7 B w) 2 B &g A ) »
P I 75 s A 445 1 7 42 5% DU 9N A PR A ] 2 B i
R 2 TR HS B 1 B A T A ] e

St Mg ) 2 B A B LA 5 R B B4 R
HY— > M b SRR R G S BTl BB A W B
Bb o f i B R A AP S e A 5 T i S B4 B
AR Z M2 BRZZ G HaE

TS A S 0 0 76 25 98 e B 24 1 2
il BB R

2014 2013

—F—WiE —E =4

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T BT T

Share of the associates’ profit for the year  FEAS i % 2 W] 4F N ¥4 F1] 8,510 9,244
Share of the associates’ other R A T v A ) G At 2 TG WA A

comprehensive income 447 870

Share of the associates’ total A A i 7 A ) 48 2 i R A

comprehensive income 8,957 10,114
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AS4E A i A ®l 2 & WY

investments in associates 48 T 1 164,391 158,698
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

20. W 4% i A B ¥

INVESTMENTS
Group Company
ey |
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR WAE RS DR -NE D=4
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T o BT T BT T
Listed equity investments s LMY
in Hong Kong, at fair value A TE 44,579 74,473 248 148
Club debenture, at fair value G ESR WA TE 327 327 — -
Unlisted equity investments, RS
at cost HRA 2,733 2,733 - -
47,639 77,533 248 148

During the year, the net gain in respect of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$36,085,000 (2013: HK$13,994,000), of which
a gain of HK$24,182,000 (2013: HK$8,655,000) was reclassified
from other comprehensive income to the statement of profit or
loss for the year.

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale financial assets and

have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

There was a significant decline in the market value of certain
listed equity investments during the year. The directors consider
that such a decline indicates that the listed equity investments
have been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$418,000
(2013: HK$13,627,000), which included a reclassification
from other comprehensive income of HK$418,000 (2013:
HK$13,627,000), has been recognised in the statement of profit

or loss for the year.

As at 31 March 2014, certain unlisted equity investments with a
carrying amount of HK$2,733,000 (2013: HK$2,733,000) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

AR AR 4R TR H b 2 T MR TR AR 2 W] 4
£ B IS 536,085,000 00 (ZF — =4 ¢
13,994,000% 7C) > 1fi H H124,182,000% 7T Z W
5 (CF—=4F £ 8,655,000470) B A4E FEE

E B MR R R L B > HARRE AT
PEH b - FLAEISE 20 H R R -

BN HET EHERREZTHERTY - #
FRR o AT B Bl s B B
8 > T WA S %5 418,000 8 (ZF—=
13,627,000% JG) > 5 o 42 45 I 4th 2 i Wi 2 2 HE
B4 $H418,000% 70 (ZF —=4F 13,627,000
JC) o M TR ARAE EAE R AR R R o

N2 —-WE=ZA=Z+—H  EHMEA
2,733,0008 70 ( —F— =4F £ 2,733,000#C) =
Ik b RE AR BB TS DL A Ik 1B A R - b
Todi & A PEAG T Z MR R K » FHHER R
HATAEARGE W] S 5T o AR 4 8] 0 7 % 2 39
HEZERE -

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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S 5 Hie i W Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

21. CURRENT LIVESTOCK

21. BB EEH

Group
e 3|
2014 2013
R WA R =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Day-old chicks eV = 179

Due to the generally short breeding and raising cycle of the
chicks and because an active market does not exist, these
livestock are classified as current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment and a reconciliation of changes in the carrying
amount of biological assets between the beginning and the end of

the current financial year is not presented.

FH P S P — B B ) B ) o PR > eI
TS BR Y o WO D B RUR T R
N 452 L JR A YA ] A AR A\ MR > e A 0
7K S R A B ) A A 2 R T AP ) 2 IR R

et 251 -

22. INVENTORIES 22. ## 8
Group
3|
2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =g
HK$’000 HK$’000
YT BT T
Raw materials JE R} 43,278 54,293
Work in progress Ry AT 9,179 10,443
Finished goods JE 1 i 217,636 188,358
270,093 253,094
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

23, M e B 5 Bk sk

Group
£

2014 2013

R WA ZRE

HKS$’000 HK$’000

0T o o

Trade receivables JEWE 5 iRk 500,329 509,407
Impairment AR (5,830) (6,454)
494,499 502,953

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally for a period
of one to three months, extending up to four to five months for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

receivables. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

ALMAE P ZH A RB DGR T > Mok
B Bl ISR - AR 2=
HoBELEEPWE - TERENERMA -
A% P 3R 5 R R R o AR J SR B p
1] o AR MO 2 MR AR I » o I A R DL e e
IR o AL B A AR A - B
T B > DA A AR [ 2 BT M sk LR
Z % LM% P B o R TR AR
JE G o A % A SIS0 A % 45 & B R A AT AT 4K
AR BRI TH o K S IRKTI R -

R IR AR B EE ST O R A 2

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, BOERZIEBSTTWMT
is as follows:
Group
3L |

2014 2013
e Sk 2 “E =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT
Within 1 month MEH AN 213,314 192,727
1 to 2 months 12216 H 86,030 91,457
2 to 3 months 233 H 85,510 97,863
Over 3 months 3 AL E 109,645 120,906
494,499 502,953

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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S 5 Hie i W Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23, MEWCBL B MR Ak (%)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWE GERZ BB S ERW T
are as follows:

Group
g L]
2014 2013
e Sk 2 —E =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
At beginning of year AER) 6,454 6,196
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) O R Wk A 18 (Bt 7) 60 1,035
Amount written off as uncollectible LS 5 A S0 3k Wi Tl 2 A O (684) (777)
At end of year AR 5,830 6,454
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade A W B B R AR T A R A B
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade B 48 HE VA E 255,830,000 8 (& — =
receivables of HK$5,830,000 (2013: HK$6,454,000) with a 6,454,0009 7C ) Z fif 1l 1 e B2 5 M kAR Hh a1
gross carrying amount before provision of HK$5,830,000 (2013: 18 4455,830,000¥ 76 (= F — =4F 1 6,454,000%
HK$6,454,000). The individually impaired trade receivables Jt) o FRBRE P Z B O W 5 iR
relate to customers that were in default or delinquency in KT 18 A BOHE RO K MR A AT o
payments and are not expected to be recovered.
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered 02 AR VA 2 WL BT 5 MRk 2 B B A T I F
to be impaired is as follows:
Group
£ L
2014 2013
ot Sk 2 R E4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Neither past due nor impaired S 91 75 400 vk L 474,313 485,218
Less than 1 month past due A — A 14,358 11,554
1 to 3 months past due W —Z = A 4,669 4,740
Over 3 months past due W= A DL L 1,159 1,441
494,499 502,953
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24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Included in trade receivables are amounts due from the Group’s
associates of HK$1,320,000 (2013: HK$1,567,000) and a
subsidiary of Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited
(“HKFH”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, of
HK$254,000 (2013: HK$181,000), which are repayable on similar
credit terms to those offered to the major customers of the Group.
The trade receivables due from the subsidiary of HKFH are in
accordance with the master supply agreement entered into between
HKFH and the Company, details of which are included in the

Company’s announcement dated 6 August 2012.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 ¥ O B Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

23, MR B Bk sk ()

SN 48 760 39 8 TRV 2 I K L9 e A0 90 S i
BZKBAREF -

8 191 4L I AR ol 2 AR T 9 B A 5 I T
BB R ZEF o BB ELLE > Ko7
ERERA o HRNEEMSRZERE R L ERR
) > W R ER B T 2 R > WO R
A Hh 9 L 954 o

A WL B 2 VR kA 5 A £ B T 4 A ] A X 2 K0
1,320,000% 70 ( =& —=4F : 1,567,000%0) &
RN — 2 LERRFEBEHREERARA
w] ([ W & ) 0 — [ BB 2 W) 45 R Z sk I
254,000 70 (=& — =4 : 181,000% JC) > M
BRI EAEERTHEEE P 2RI
[l o 7 ¥ 1 2 B 2 W) 45 R 2 E WL B 5 W 3k
T AR v A B A W) BT 2 3 Bk HE e
For > HE BRI #ERAAR ZF—ZF)N\AN
HZAdEEH -

24, FAAF KB ~ 6T 4 B JU Al HE WOk

Group Company
£ AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
R -WEE DF = SR -WE DR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BY T Xl BT BT T
Prepayments AT K 41,604 39,481 139 139
Deposits and other receivables #T 4 T FAth JE Wtk T 85,275 73,409 = -
126,879 112,890 139 139
Less: Deposits classified W F 4y R IR IR B
as non-current assets BEREZW & (21,424) (18,092) = -
Current portion i By R 43 105,455 94,798 139 139

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

bt S Sl AR b Al A R LA Y
A0 7 U R 3B A Bk WA I

= g E e

oW &% M oAF R oA A
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

25.

26.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. $R A PE B B 4 2 A IR S ik ¥
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
Group
M
2014 2013
TR P4 R =4
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T BT
Listed equity investments in TW LR > T
Hong Kong, at market value 9,334 12,012

The above equity investments at 31 March 2014 were classified
as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition, designated

by the Group as financial assets at fair value through profit or

PR B E R R WEZA = A4
Bl R H T > RACER B MR e B AR 45 52
A TALE R 35 AR Z S b 2 -

loss.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 e KB ESMHHH
Group Company
e L A

2014 2013 2014 2013
TRWE  CRE4E SR-NE R S4
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT BT T
Cash and bank balances Bla R RAT R A 484,918 371,467 470 804
Time deposits E WA 3K 260,905 239,257 = -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 R B4 S HE H 745,823 610,724 470 804

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$182,321,000 (2013: HK$154,519,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.
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PR HIAR - AREE AR (TARYD 5
i 2 Bl 4 R $RAT 4547 £5182,321,000¥ 70 (=&
— =4F 1 154,519,000 06) - ARWEAHBHH
Sh 4 2 JUAL B W 5 AEURR 8 o IR K e A A PR AR
B 45 REE ~ B REE S A TE A BLRL S8 > A B R A of
75 B SR T AT A I SR IR 2 SRAT I N R

SRAT Bl 358 HARAT A7 3k A 3 DA B R % e
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3 3% B A B 2 J6 0 A A7 R R R B e R
AT K547 T3 A2 Y AT 9 I 0 7 40 e ki AT RLAF R
BT -



Notes to Fin

ancial Statements

Wt B B RE

Year ended 31 March 2014 &E _F—WE=ZH=+—H L4

27. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER 27. BEAY BB Wk ~ il ME A 5k O B
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS $ <]

Group Company
£ A ¥

2014 2013 2014 2013

TR -WE RS DR -NE CRZE

HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000

BT BT BT T

Trade payables JBE AT B 5 R A 201,579 187,862 = -

Other payables JL At JE A 35k 0 51,525 56,783 = -

Accruals R wE AR 104,706 90,839 1,465 1,059

357,810 335,484 1,465 1,059

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

IR > AR R E H Z EA S Rk

HR AT E

Group
e 4L |

2014 2013
R WA ZREg
HK$’000 HK$’000
0T o o
Within 1 month KEDERZ] 148,367 119,485
1 to 2 months 12218 A 31,581 38,376
2 to 3 months 223 A 8,965 14,681
Over 3 months 3E A 2Lk 12,666 15,320
201,579 187,862

Included in the trade payables are trade payables of HK$50,509,000
(2013: HK$41,733,000) due to associates, which are normally

settled on 30-day to 60-day terms.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on 30-day to 60-day terms. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing and have an average term of three months.

A GRS CEBR/ERFEEARZIENE S
MR 7#K50,509,000% 76 (& — =4 : 41,733,000
WIt) > A —MIE30E60 H W PR 45 AT -

WA B2 5 Mk 2 4 S o — IBE %30 % 60 H 19 B 45
£ o SeA HEAT BRI TS R 8. o 5 BP9 % =

H o

=% W FE

e MW W K M A W A FA
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ENY
o B 2 B A
Year ended 31 March 2014 ®RE_F—W4E=H=+—H k4
28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 28. ZE AT M B 2 S AT £
BORROWINGS
2014 2013
ZE N —E-ER
Effective Effective
Group interest rate Maturity HK$’000 interest rate Maturity HK$’000
KM 0 YIRS W H BT TR R B A BT
Current
o]
Trust receipt loans — unsecured 1.0%-2.4% Within 121,085 0.7%-2.4% Within 143,064
S HE A5 U IR B 12 months 12 months
12MAH W 121 A A
Bank loans — unsecured 0.7%-6.7 % Within 651,960 0.7%-6.7% Within 628,567
S HEA ST B 12 months 12 months
or on or on
demand demand
12A R 1218 F 7
Bank loans — secured - - - 7.8% Within 9,999
A SRAT Bk 12 months
1218 A A
773,045 781,630
Non-current
FEiR B
Bank loans — unsecured 0.9%-2.4% 2015-2016 60,284 0.9%-2.4% 2014-2015 74,533
G AT ek e S X 3 ZZ2— N
FEB—NE BER—HE
833,329 856,163
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

28. A SAT P B 2 8447 Bk (F)

Group
e
2014 2013
—F—WLE —E =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T BT T
Analysed into: Sy AT R
Bank loans: AT :

Within one year or on demand SR N R R 773,045 781,630
In the second year BBAER 34,864 71,669
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZFREN > AFEERWE 25,420 2,864
833,329 856,163

Notes: VK3

(a)

(b)

©

All the bank and trust receipt loans bear interest at floating interest

rates.

Except for the bank loans denominated in Japanese yen equivalent
to HK$421,228,000 (2013: HK$370,813,000), the bank loans
denominated in RMB equivalent to HK$79,584,000 (2013:
HK$99,117,000) and the bank loan denominated in United States
dollar equivalent to HK$3,083,000 (2013: HK$3,298,000), all bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were in Hong Kong

dollars.

At 31 March 2013, certain bank loans of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary were secured by the pledge of that non-wholly-owned
subsidiary’s certain leasehold land of HK$1,474,000 and buildings
of HK$3,498,000.

Ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause and

based on the maturity terms of the bank loans and trust receipt

loans, the amounts repayable in respect of the Group’s interest-

bearing bank borrowings are: within one year or on demand
HK$729,295,000 (2013: HK$763,630,000); in the second year
HK$59,864,000 (2013: HK$89,669,000); and in the third to fifth
years, inclusive HK$44,170,000 (2013: HK$2,864,000).

(a)  FRAT ST B A5 wE Mod Bk 3 DL B A L -

(b) B A 421,228,000 00 (ZF — = 4¢ ¢
370,813,000%5 J6) DA H B 51 Mz Z $RAT &3k ~ A
Z57479,584,000¥ 7T (ZF—=4F : 99,117,000 %
J8) PN RFE B IR 2 AT 80k KoM 46772 3,083,000
Wt (ZF—=4F ¢ 3,298,000% 78 ) DA TG MR
ZARAT R 5 BT SRAT BN O R 38 S

(©0 MRIZB-ZH£ZHA=Z+—H > ETHE2EHEL
B JE 2 W) 2 SRAT A 540 B DA W% Ik A O A B
B A FMEAEA91,474,0008 0 2 75 T HLE L b %
3,498,000% JC 2 18 5% 4 2 FR A0 45 AR -

L 3% A A 42 2 ORI R AR 5 B I AR R SR AT
Bk B A5 FE IR Bk 2 B ek o AR AR T ZE 4
A F] B Z SRAT A B Z BEAT 3K I 4%+ 729,295,000
Wt (ZF — =4F & 763,630,000 J0) H i
— 4 Y B IR R M 4R 5 59,864,000 0 (&
— =4 1 89,669,000 70 ) ZH A A AR R 5 K&
44,170,000% 76 (ZF — = 4F : 2,864,000 7T)
HAREZAEEAE (BB ERWE) R -

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE
29. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

29. 3B %€ B
TAAF P M HE B £ B P X T

Group — 2014 B -4
Deferred tax liabilities W %t Bl I 1 45
Fair value
adjustment
Accelerated arising from
tax  acquisition of Revaluation ~ Withholding
depreciation subsidiaries  of properties taxes Total
VA9 i Y D
B A A
Uil 2N WA LS it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#W T #W T #W T #H T #W T
At 1 April 2013 R-ZF—=H#NH—H 1,521 12,640 3,889 201 18,251
Deferred tax charged/(credited) — AC4E B MH 25 % W B/
to the statement of profit or (FHA) ZIBERLIH
loss during the year (note 10) (Hiti0) 1,515 (478) 91) - 946
Exchange realignment JEE 52 34 2% - (102) - - (102)
At 31 March 2014 RE-F—NEZH=+—H 3,036 12,060 3,798 201 19,095
Deferred tax assets Y& St BE I e
Losses
available for
Decelerated offsetting
tax  against future
depreciation  taxable profits Others Total
WA L
WAL M58 ik A
it #1585 2 11 Hfb st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

#W T T BT W T

At 1 April 2013 RE-Z—Z4HWH—H 3 415 1,158 1,576
Deferred tax charged REFEREREN

to the statement of profit or MR Z 48 2 BLIH

loss during the year (note 10) (Mtatio) - - (46) (46)
At 31 March 2014 REF-NEZA=+—H 3 415 1,112 1,530
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. JEHE B ()
Group — 2013 HEH-—F—=
Deferred tax liabilities Y& %E BE I 11 45
Fair value
adjustment
Accelerated arising from
tax  acquisition of Revaluation Withholding
depreciation subsidiaries of properties taxes Total
PRI W B
MEBE AW
il ZAVHRE MR s st
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T W T T g T T
At 1 April 2012 RZF—-ZHNYA—H 564 13,077 3,980 201 17,822
Deferred tax charged/(credited) — AC4E B ME 25 % W B/
to the statement of profit or (FHA) ZIBEBLIE
loss during the year (note 10)  (Hf#10) 957 (642) (91) - 224
Exchange realignment I 5% it 2 - 205 - - 205
At 31 March 2013 R-F-ZHZA=+—H 1,521 12,640 3,889 201 18,251
Deferred tax assets HE % B ¥ e
Losses
available for
Decelerated offsetting
tax against future
depreciation  taxable profits Others Total
WA B A
il 2 L 0 HE #R At i )
it i 72l Al At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ol ol BT BT
At 1 April 2012 BRoF—-"HNH—H 5 415 861 1,281
Deferred tax credited/(charged) AAEFERARENFTAS
to the statement of profit or (BR) 2 EIEBLIH
loss during the year (note 10) (HiE10) (2) - 297 295
At 31 March 2013 REF-=ZHEZA=+—H 3 415 1,158 1,576

= - WO

oW &% M oAF R oA A
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$128,234,000 (2013: HK$128,513,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also has unrecognised tax losses arising in Mainland China of
approximately HK$178,250,000 (2013: HK$175,529,000) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profit. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as, in the opinion of the directors, it
is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2014, except for the deferred tax recognised for a
subsidiary that will distribute dividend, no other deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$58,784,000 at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$45,486,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment

of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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29. JEHE B (#H)

AREEMAEHFBEAEZ RERBIEERL S
128,234,000% J& (=& — =4F : 128,513,000
J0) A KR AR IR S H BB R AR Z
AR E B R A o AL ARG B Ok B A
Al — 2 AR B ) 2 R e AR B JE S 1B A 2
178,250,000% 7 (=& — =4 : 175,529,000%
J6) > W FMEHGH B & Z ERRBL i A o % B
TG R R BRI A & - REHER R
K BT B A2 A0 A 2R R Ha ) v Bt K 1 B
BhEiH o

AL B A S BT AS BE  » 7 e I O e R o 2 b
7 B A 3 1 BT A B Rk Z 8 ik
10%TMBL o ZHEH ZFF/NFE—-HHIE
AR WHAR —EFFLET A= HR
ZBA) o G BTHMEE B ] e S
KB RT A BB R 4 > S0 00 T B R AT T R
1K o BRAGE T 5 > 0 BERR5% o Rk > AR
5 TR B A o e S R R 4 ) )\
HE— 1 — R A A 2 B B 4 IR 2 8 A T
Bt o

W_F—NE=ZA=+—H » BR— ST
IR B 2 o o ) e R G B TR A > ol AR
A2 B 7 v I3 e R 2 B 2 ) A =2 R B
R BT EE A Z TE A B SR LA IR A R o W
Ky o %S JE A R T RS RS K R4 IR
FHRAEF - R _F—WE=H=1—H > B}
o B K e 2 B A ) Z BB B 2 AR R R AT
T8 T £ 2 W IRk 2 A A T 49 45 58,784,000
JC (B — = 4E 1 45,486,000808)

25 R A T B K3 A7 B 7 1
B -



30. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

30. A

Shares JBe £y
2014 2013
R e
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T BT T
Authorised: BiE ¢
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares 1,000,000,000 8% &5 Ji% 1Hi {&
of HK$0.10 each 0.10% JG Z 3% 8 B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: OB MR
387,909,640 ordinary shares of 387,909,640/% 45 i 1 {€0.10%5 7T
HK$0.10 each Z 0 B 38,790 38,790
There was no share repurchase during the current year. AE N N 40 B B4 AT JBE Ay o

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company repurchased
a total of 2,690,000 of its own shares on the Stock Exchange for
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$6,044,000. The
2,690,000 shares that were repurchased during the year ended 31
March 2013, together with 108,000 shares that were repurchased
during the year ended 31 March 2012, were cancelled before
31 March 2013 and the premium paid on the repurchase was
charged to the share premium account. An amount equivalent to
the par value of the ordinary shares cancelled was transferred
to the capital redemption reserve as set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The directors considered that, as the Company’s shares were
trading at a discount to the expected net asset value per share, the

repurchase of shares would be beneficial to the Company.

BECZ-=ZE=A=Z1—HILEE » AAH
T A2 T I [ 5 362,690,000 e 47 » #ARE £
#6,044,00087C « E F—=ZH£=ZA=Z+—
H 1k 42 B % 5] 2 2,690,0008% 47 78 ] i 8k = —
F—HZHZ4—HIEFJEREE Z 108,000/
BHBOR _F—Z2FEH =1 —HZ iR -
Jif ] 2 O Ao i 0 5 AR JE 0 1 R 0 B o AR R 5
£ WE 5 588 B 3R PTG 8 A B T i 2 AH
IF] 25K A W A JE [l R R A

ERER R > HR A W Z By DL A B
FEZ YT AT BT > R A A F A
Al o

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 30. JBe A (%)
A summary of the repurchase of shares during the year ended 31 BE DR == H=1—H -4 B B A
March 2013 is as follows: WEZR &N ¢
Number of Price per share Total
shares repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
9 0 )% 3 9 H 5 JBe Jik S AU AS e A A
Month HH B 52119
HKS$ HKS$ HK$°000
Boc BT BT
April 2012 TR TAEPH 2,286,000 2.51 1.88 5,180
December 2012 ZR-T4ETTH 404,000 2.28 2.03 864
2,690,000 6,044
A summary of the transactions during the prior year with BBERNFFRFECETHBERARET 2R
reference to the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary SRR W

share capital is as follows:

Number of Share
ordinary Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
% £
WHBRYH Ok Rk A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T T T T T

At 1 April 2012 N _FE—-_4MFENH—H 390,707,640 39,070 222,482 261,552
Repurchase and i Tl R s 4 e oy
cancellation of shares (2,798,000) (280) (5,976) (6,256)

At 31 March 2013, R-F—=ZF=H=+—H -
1 April 2013 and ZE-EZFMA—HK
31 March 2014 —“E—-NE=ZH=+—H 387,909,640 38,790 216,506 255,296
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees
of the Company, and any executive director or employee of any
of the Company’s subsidiaries and any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest.

On 28 August 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) to replace the share option scheme which was
commenced on 17 September 2002 and was terminated on 28
August 2012 (the “Terminated Scheme”). The Scheme is valid
and effective for a period of 10 years up to 27 August 2022,
after which no further share options will be granted but the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects. Share options complying with the provisions
of the Listing Rules which are granted during the duration of
the Scheme and those remain unexercised immediately prior to
the end of the 10-year period shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of grant as within the share option
period for which such share options are granted, notwithstanding

the expiry of the Scheme.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 38,831,364 ordinary shares,
being 10.0% of the shares of the Company in issue on 28 August
2012. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 38,831,364 ordinary
shares, representing 10.01% of the existing issued share capital
of the Company. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a

general meeting.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2014 &Z —Z— 4= =+—H L4 )%

31. 0 JBE A 1l

A2 TSR W P AR w8 0k S % (B 3 A 4R
MEEERA AR AR A ER28E - Gtll
ZHEKSHE AN ZE R (BHEHT
FEPATES) ~ H AR B KA A T A R R
A S5 B e A A B B i T R AT
fEH o

WF—AENHZT\H > RAFR A —IH
i e R T ) (TRT 30 )) > DABURIR ZRE AR
ATt HBBER 22— )\ T N\H#&
Ik W BERESH#) (T4 kGH# ) - 52 A R0y
10 BERZF)NHAZ T EHRIE o H
18 1% A € P4 Hh A A S e R o LT ) 22 MR AR AE
Bl b iR A B R B R - BT EER A L
MR R F > SR EF B 104 BUH AR H -
AELAE 5T 0 39 e 3 A3 AR B AT O = B R > ()
I IR RE A2t W 2 R AR AT > R B2 Rl A
Wz

B i AR B8 ST B 28 FE AR R AT R
T BOH %538,831,364 /K 5 8 It - M ERARA
AEZF-ZHANAZ N OBITRMGZ
10.0% o WA e 45 B8 H 1 > AR08 51 ) v 43t 5%
17 2 B AR B3 80Uk 38,831,364 80 3% 48 i » FA Z5 R
AKAFBCBITRAZ10.01% o A+ =
AN > REFH S mE s NG EE
2 BB AT Z B e I Ay B0 H R A58 I AR A R AR
AT e T 2 CBEAT B 2 1% o ARAT 3 — 25 4%
26 I P A 2 I TR RE > P ZEAE SRR K & A
JBe A e o
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding an independent non-executive director who
is a grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer, upon receipt of the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
grantee with the number of shares in respect of which the offer
is accepted clearly stated therein, together with payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee to the Company
provided that no offer shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the Scheme or after the Scheme has been terminated.
The terms and conditions of the share options granted are
determinable by the directors on a case-by-case basis. Such
terms and conditions may include, but are not limited to (i) the
subscription price; (ii) the period within which the Company’s
shares must be taken up under the share option, which must not
be more than 10 years from the offer date; (iii) the minimum
period, if any, for which a share option must be held before it can
be exercised; and (iv) the performance target, if any, that must be

achieved before the share option can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors in their absolute discretion at the time of the making of
the offer which shall be stated in the letter containing the offer,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the offer date which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value

of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

FOUR SEAS MERCANTILE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

31. 0 B At = (%9)

BV AN ER - 1B R 2 AT B B
AN Z R > ZH o Se U AR 2 BB S JE AT
A (o 452 7 D e R g8 S AT
EHERAGEAEN) o tosh o BT+ A
] P9 4% T A A W 2 2 B e R o o Ik AT
Hoo B0 S AT i Mg B N e 2 A O
Aoy BT AT I ] 2 AT B4 2.0.1% S I A4
i (%452 Hh B JBO R 6 I = Je W it 50 ) 0
SHEWITH > I H S SEAE B AR & LA
HAHE o

2 0 e M R AR R R R R H
W E28 H R AN > RIS AR L R B
S VO Y D P o PR A o L rp R W)
AT B < M H > R A b e 2 T
AT o MR PBOME 2 o A B TE N A
JoE i A 0 AR B A o TR B PR 2
AR Sk A v R DLk - A B R &
0k P 455 AEL A RO i e A 8 6 T 5 i) G A e
ZATHEIE o TR A AR T M A B A% 1 R
A5 (i) B R e L ZEFR R 2 A A AT AT B (i
) 3 BeGv)RBHEE > 2 5035 T 47 03 i B HE i
HIERZRBHARE (NA) -

i e R AT (0 i B U E - AR Y R B R 2
A2 B B R R B A P RE N s MER AR
VLR R E o () AR 2 ] A 7 S e A3 ) S I
H(ERRZSH) EHAR G HREETRZIK
T 5 (i) AR 2 W) B4 7 B8 B 452 Hh T HE s H
W IR A8 5 B AT AR i i 1 i A 3 P Rk
¥y (DL A B g H SR R Pl 4 ) 5
K (i) A A w] ey Z i o

Sl FBHEE NI 0 MR T 5 A N WO B B Je AROR
ERFZHES -



31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year, no share option (2013: Nil) was granted to

directors and other employees of the Company or employees of

any of the Company’s subsidiaries and any entities in which the

Group holds any equity interests.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no share

option outstanding under the Terminated Scheme/Scheme (2013:

Nil).

32. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 56 to

57 of the financial statements.

The Group’s share premium account includes (i) the
credit of HK$19,900,000 which represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company and the aggregate nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1993; and (ii) the debit of HK$23,684,000
arising from the repurchase of shares during the years ended
31 March 2013, 2011 and 2010.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Foreign
Investment Enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group’s subsidiaries and the Group’s associates operating as
Foreign Investment Enterprises in Mainland China has been
transferred to the reserve funds. The reserve funds are non-
distributable in nature and can be utilised to offset the losses

incurred.

The capital reserve represents the Group’s share of capitalisation

of retained profits by an associate.
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32. fili i
(a) M

ACER AR AR 3 RO R AR Z Al S IL S )
TE M B SR S6 H MSTH Z A HE R S )
EKNET -

A S 8 J Ay ¥ A MR A ¢ (i) %5 8%19,900,000
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32. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

32. fili i (4)

(b) 2
Available-
for-sale
Share investment Capital
premium  revaluation  redemption Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
i
] #A
I it W WEEE REEA it
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000

Wit #hTr  #FTr  #FTr #FTT BT

At 1 April 2012 RZZ—ENA—H 256,301 17 674 23,047 280,239
Total comprehensive ERAZENE/ (BE)

income/(loss) for the year - (4) - 30,623 30,619
Repurchase of shares I e (5,976) - 492 (280) (5,764)
Interim 2013 dividend ZE-EZERIRA 12 - - - (7,760) (7,760)
Proposed final 2013 dividend ZR-SERRANRE 12 - - - (19,395) (19,395)
At31 March 2013 and REZ-=E=A=+—HE

at 1 April 2013 ZE-ZENR-H 250325 13 1,166 26,435 277,939
Total comprehensive ERA 2

income for the year - 100 - 32,143 32,43
Interim 2014 dividend SR -IWER A 12 - - - (1,758) (1,758)
Proposed final 2014 dividend ZE-MEERASR A 12 - - - (23,275) (23,275)

At 31 March 2014

REZ-WEZA=Z1—H

250,325 113 1,166 21,545 279,149

The Company’s share premium account includes (i) the
credit of HK$53,719,000 which represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company and the combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1993; and
(ii) the debit of HK$23,684,000 arising from the repurchase
of shares during the years ended 31 March 2013, 2011 and
2010. Under the Company Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, a distribution may be made from the share premium

account in certain circumstances.

The difference between the share premium account of the
Company and that of the Group represents the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries and their combined net assets acquired,
pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1993, as detailed
above.
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

A summary of the disposal of the subsidiaries in the prior year is as

follows:
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33. LB B A wH)
FAE 5 U W A W 2 T

2013
—EFE =
Note HK$’000
Mt it BT T
Net assets disposed of: 8
Cash and bank balances Bl B RAT R Bk 194
Other payables and accruals L Al A 5K T M i AR (279)
(85)
Exchange reserve realised upon A 5 B B A W IRp BB
disposal of subsidiaries Z W 580k B) £k 186 (4,639)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B 2 W 2 W e 5 4,724
HK$
BT
Satisfied by cash Bl WOR 1

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

B O B 2 ) 2 B S B S I H AL
HrnF

HK$°000

BT T

Cash consideration Bl -

Cash and bank balances disposed of & Z B4 AT A iR (194)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents 5 i A 5l Z Bl 4 KB & %

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries  {EJH H & (194)

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

4. R A

TP IR > Sl AR B 5 Ak AR A 2 R
KREEWT

Group Company
£ 2
2014 2013 2014 2013

% AR —F =4 BuslE —F =4
HEKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$000
BT H 0TI #W T # W T

Guarantees given to banks in Tk B 2> W] Z SR AT

connection with facilities 1% 8 ) SR AT

granted to subsidiaries AL R - — 2,261,708 1,665,591
Guarantees given to third parties ok — e B e A

in connection with lease payments ORI Z &

for lease agreements entered RIEE=H

into by a subsidiary i th Z ¥ O} - - 40,447 38,672

- - 2,302,155 1,704,263

As at 31 March 2014, the banking facilities granted to subsidiaries
subject to guarantees given to banks by the Company were
utilised to the extent of approximately HK$833,329,000 (2013:
HK$820,781,000).
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 15) to an
associate under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease

negotiated for a term of two years.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under a non-cancellable operating lease

with its associate falling due as follows:
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5. BBMA K

(a)

e 2y MALA

ALE B E LR Z REY
% (BFRELS) T—Frlgh e A W] - KERER Z Al
HIAE ) 2 T4 o

REF-WEZA=+—H » MIRHRES
AT SLZ AT A R AR AR
2T T B 39 B AT R 2 e R 4 AT
T

Group
£

2014 2013
S s
HK$’000 HK$’000
T o o
Within one year —4ER 1,179 254
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BB HE BT E R WA 295 -
1,474 254

As lessee

The Group leases certain land and buildings under operating
lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to fifty years. The Group has the option of
extending the leases by up to three years in certain operating

lease arrangements.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

(b)

2y AR RLA

ACER B AR AR R LR A A T b R
T oo MEMZIMAFMH - FELHELR
G o E TR LR > AL A R
PREE A =4

REF-MEZAZA—H > REBARE
AR AT i 8 < K8 FHLA TR T 51 90 PR

falling due as follows: i Z B ARFL A R T -
Group
0|

2014 2013
S e
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T o BT oo
Within one year —4ERN 114,467 116,896
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 58 Z 5 L4 » 5 H B W4E 121,733 103,220
After five years PR 41,965 45,794
278,165 265,910

= g E e

oW &% M oAF R oA A
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

(b) As lessee (continued)

The operating lease rentals of certain retail shops are based
on the sales of those shops. In the opinion of the directors,
as the future sales of those retail shops could not be
accurately estimated at the end of the reporting period, the
relevant rental commitments have not been included above.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have
any future minimum lease receivables or payments under non-

cancellable operating leases (2013: Nil).

36. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
35(b) above, the Group had capital commitments in respect of

property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period:

IS BB MA R (H)

() feRRBA (B)

AT EEEHZ A MEHE SIS
il B R AT o HHR Ry > R DL
oo R R AL % S R H AR Z 8
B> WL b S A B 2 AR I

REEBR > RAFEARTHBEKEMET »
3 48 A H A% fe A R B HE WO B SR A K (2 F
— A ) o

36. 7RI

B b SCH E35(b) Rk At 2 K888 FL A AR B A0 > A
P o R R 3~ R e B A R A
mF

Group
5
2014 2013
—F W ERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T BT T
Contracted, but not provided for AT A 4H AR 48 465 7,989 513

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no

significant commitments (2013: Nil).
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2014 #&F - F—W4E=H=+—HIL4EE

JT.BREANLRY

(a) O 45 B 5 i o S At b 7 P sl 2 22 5 B
REERAL > AR ARG I B L B AN L RTSE T

the following material transactions with its related parties HIE KRR G -
during the year:
2014 2013
—E—M4E e e
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt i BT BT
Purchases of goods from associates [ i %5 2 &] £F % i) 374,084 353,760
Sales of goods to associates 1o Wk 7 2 ) B (ii) 11,934 12,312
Promotion expenses reimbursed T 8 A ) B 4 BB S
by associates (iii) 20,493 19,315
Rental income from an associate KABEARZHEBRA  (v) 1,215 1,045
Sales of goods to a subsidiary FARAR EERRZ
of a substantial shareholder Fi Jo5 2 =] 68 85 £
of the Company ) 4,464 3,113
Notes: M it

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

The cost of purchases from associates was made at pre-
determined prices agreed between the parties.

The selling prices of the goods sold to associates were
determined by reference to prices and conditions similar to
those offered to other major customers.

The promotion expenses reimbursed by associates were
determined by reference to the costs incurred by the Group.

The rental income from an associate was determined between

the Group and the associate.

The selling prices of the goods sold were determined by
reference to prices and conditions similar to those offered to

other major customers.

() TG A WL R 2 SR AR TR B T 4 5 TS
i A AR A T A

(i) I A W B 2 A AR T 2 R A 2 2
%P PN UL A R R O -

(iif) T 4> DR B B S T IR AR 2 B
W 22 5 B A AE o

(v) AR AR Z A AW TS AR 4 E S
BAFEE -

(v) SERRZEENE2ERTHAEES
P Z AT A B ek A2 A -

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Details of the amounts due from associates to the
Group at the end of the reporting period are included in
note 19 to the financial statements.

(ii) Details of the Group’s trade balances with its associates
at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in notes
23 and 27 to the financial statements.

Commitments with related parties:

On 1 July 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a
two-year agreement with an associate, to lease the Group’s
investment property to that associate. Details of the
operating lease commitment are disclosed in note 35(a) to

the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

37. B LR 5 ()

(b) BRI N\ b 2 1o R AR R A i
() TAECEBIR > B AR A RARLE M Z
AR A > O S 2 A B RE 19

(i) TR BIAR > AR M SILE S AR Z
55 R B w7 B 5 e 4 P 23 27
Wifx o

(c) HLBHE AN+t RYE:
WZF—=ZFLH—H » RN H— G
o) B — [ S A R ST LW AE B g > DL
HHAEEBEMETZHEAT - GH
R R YE Z G OO BB R E M R
35(a) P 2% -

(d) AEEMEEERABZHM

2014 2013

R N

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T o BT T

Short term employee benefits R B R A 18,893 18,585
Pension scheme contributions AR 4 3 Atk 709 750
19,602 19,335

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial

statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 37(a)(v) also

constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. & LH2Z 48
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REERR s FEEM T AZREMEN T ¢

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group - 2014 M- —F—Wip
Financial assets 4 O A
Financial Available-
assets at fair for-sale
value through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
AP IE B
HEARZ £k K LR N
£ Y A MEWOR 2 A Hm

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#W T T T T

Available-for-sale investments ]t R E - - 47,639 47,639
Due from associates R W U 7 2 W] - 23 - 23
Trade receivables JRE WL B 5 Bk Ak - 494,499 - 494,499
Financial assets included in A3 55 7 TE AT ROE
prepayments, deposits and T 4 B At JE W
other receivables AR I Z 4 b - 85,275 - 85,275
Financial assets at fair value A TPEZE BB
through profit or loss AR Z 4 il & 9,334 - - 9,334
Cash and cash equivalents B4 R Bl S HE H - 745,823 - 745,823
9,334 1,325,620 47,639 1,382,593

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

3. &M T H2Z 4% ()

Group — 2013 L - —F =4
Financial assets A RE E
Financial Available-
assets at fair for-sale
value through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
A CPAHIE R
BREARZ Bk K ]t
4 Tl B FEWR e mEE skl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT
Available-for-sale investments ] R - - 77,533 77,533
Due from associates JRE WU 5 2 W] - 15 - 15
Trade receivables JE Wi B2 5 e sk - 502,953 - 502,953
Financial assets included in A 55 7 TE AT KO
prepayments, deposits and other FT A B At I Wk
receivables AR Z 4 b A - 73,409 - 73,409
Financial assets at fair value W TEBE BB
through profit or loss AR Z Sl 12,012 - - 12,012
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KRB 4% HEH - 610,724 - 610,724
12,012 1,187,101 77,533 1,276,646
Group kgL |
Financial liabilities 4Rk
2014 2013
—F—WiE ZE =4
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
WA AN L RN
Y 4B 7l £1 % 114 <8 il £ A
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade BIGN AN E SRR
payables, other payables JFC R Ao 35K I B it
and accruals AHZ R 324,015 309,794
Interest-bearing bank borrowings R B Z SRAT B 833,329 856,163
1,157,344 1,165,957
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 3. &M TLHZ 5 (H)
CATEGORY (continued)
Company AT
Financial assets 4 b
2014 2013
ZE—-WA ZR-ZR
Available- Available-
Loans and for-sale Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total receivables  financial assets Total
i 94 W i Rk W&
Blox  ZeWERE ik Bl zaMEE HE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W T EW T EW T BHFI BETT HEHFIT
Available-for-sale investments W SR Y - 248 248 - 148 148
Due from subsidiaries E B A ) 671,171 - 671,171 649,707 - 649,707
Cash and bank balances Re kAL HER 470 - 470 804 - 804
678,247 248 678,495 650,511 148 650,659
Company G |
Financial liabilities 4 b B 4%
2014 2013
R TR =g
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
TEHES A AR RS AR AR
1 4x £ A P 4 il £1 5
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T o BT
Due to subsidiaries FEAT B ) A W] 429,063 406,723
Financial liabilities included in BGPTSRk ~ AR A
trade payables, other KE B BB
payables and accruals Z & mh A 1,465 1,059
430,528 407,782
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Except for certain unlisted equity investments classified as
available for sale for which the fair value could not be measured
reliably and were carried at costs, available-for-sale investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were

carried at fair value.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in trade payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due from/to subsidiaries, amounts due from associates and bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments or with floating

interest rates.

The Group’s finance team is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. The finance team reports directly to the
executive directors and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the executive directors. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim and

annual financial reporting.
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair value of the club debenture is based on

market observable transactions.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2014
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3&&%1%2&?@&&¥ﬁ%ﬁ

m

ol 7 S LR A PR DA TS E B RS 5
7 (i 58 78 R M ) AT A B T T A2
AL -

b 2 A5 A 4 T DA I R R o
e A6 25 W 2 P DA v B8 T 355 28 B A R E

AT
T BT A T L 0 4 A A

AP e i 4 0 R
RZFE-WE=H=+—H

Group Company
£ 3| |

Fair value measurement using

2P wH R

Quoted prices Significant Quoted prices
in active observable in active
markets inputs markets
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total (Level 1)
W ERWBE 5l B
85 A L PN i e
(58—J) (58— ) it GGBE—F)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T T T T T

Available-for-sale investments: w4k R
Listed equity investments LR E 44,579 - 44,579 248
Unlisted club debenture FE LT R A %R - 327 327 -
Financial assets at fair value AT EBERELR
through profit or loss AR Z &Rl E 9,334 - 9,334 -
53,913 327 54,240 248
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

40

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2013

3&%%1%2&?@&&?@%%

REZF—=ZF=HA=F+—H

Group Company
e AT
Fair value measurement using
O F 3 AR
Quoted prices Significant Quoted prices
in active observable in active
markets inputs markets
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total (Level 1)
WHE O ERWBE % B 5
i 35 iy A e
(58— Jd) (58 =) frat (% —Jd)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T T T
Available-for-sale investments: AL R E
Listed equity investments LT RE AR 74,473 - 74,473 148
Unlisted club debenture Ik b R AR %R - 327 327 -
Financial assets at fair value WA TEBERERR
through profit or loss AR Z Sl 12,012 - 12,012 -
86,485 327 86,812 148

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

for the financial assets of the Group and the Company (2013: Nil).

The Group and the Company did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings and cash and short term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade
receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other payables,

which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s short and long term debt

obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using variable

rate debts, which is regularly reviewed by senior management.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact
on floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity. There is no

impact on the Company’s equity.
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40. Y 85 . B 45 BE H B B BOR ()

% e B

SR [ ZEC 7R M T R A B A L B T B AR
A DL B A G R S R R S AR A B

A SR [0 T SR 0 P T R 3 A £ R R R

A s 3 H A B S BT AR A o

AR5 W Z B BRT R A (2 8 8 A K Y
W) RS IR R R T R A Y (P
A7 At T 58 DR R M R AN ) U o R

e S A ) 2 R i S S S o

Group
e 3L |
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
e 31 I e 1 ik A B 22
¥im,/ (W) Bm,/ (W) B, (W)
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
2014 it S LK
Hong Kong dollar Wt 25 (890) -
Japanese yen H [H 25 (990) -
RMB N 25 (223) -
Hong Kong dollar Wt (25) 890 -
Japanese yen H [H (25) 990 -
RMB N (25) 223 -
2013 —REAE
Hong Kong dollar Wt 25 (1,100) -
Japanese yen H [ 25 (844) -
RMB N 25 (286) -
Hong Kong dollar #woT (25) 1,100 -
Japanese yen H E (25) 844 -
RMB N (25) 286 -

*  Excluding retained profits

* N EAT R B it R
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies

other than the units’ functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
Japanese yen and RMB exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group’s equity (due to changes in fair value of forward currency

contracts). There is no impact on the Company’s equity.

40. Y 85 e B 45 BE H B B BOR ()

A B o, B

A SR [ T 2 22 Ty M B o % S R B TS TR
R B DL AL 2 Th e 61 W A S 2 1 AT H
S A A o

A HHR A B A At A N R A AR A L
o ACER [ B B A R A (b B A X LR
P 158 ) O B0) B AR 4 P RE 2 (ol P e 0 8
WS 200 1A O SF-(E058 B8 i B0 R ol R 3 R
B N B T 2% £ B ] B A ) 2 UKL o A L
gt S A 2 ] 2 A N S S o

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
JE R B B 1 %2 A B 2
Bm, (W) Bm, (W) Wom,/ (¥4)
% HKS$’000 HK$’000
T o BT T
2014 — Lk
If Hong Kong dollar weakens # VL 56 H B 89 3
against Japanese yen 1 (4,076) -
If Hong Kong dollar weakens #5 v 0 N R 59
against RMB 1 1,441 -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens 77 ¥ JG bt H [B] 58 34
against Japanese yen 1) 4,076 -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens — #7 #5705t A R W 58 34
against RMB 1) (1,441) -
2013 &=
If Hong Kong dollar weakens VT 5 H A 55 3
against Japanese yen 1 (3,193) -
If Hong Kong dollar weakens e TN R
against RMB 1 620 -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens %7 ¥ JG bt H [B] 58 24
against Japanese yen (1) 3,193 -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens — #7 #5 76 5 A B i 34
against RMB (1) (620) -

*  Excluding retained profits
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, amounts
due from associates, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group is
also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 34 to the

financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as
the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely

dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23

to the financial statements.
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FH A 55 0 {2 L 520 Y S £ 8 T S 0 % P AT
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations. The
Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank

borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

i ) 4 W B

ACEE [ 725 0 AR P AR MR ) T > B
2 4 R B o b TR o 8 L el TR K
e A (W B 2 sk ) BB H Rk | A
BEBWEYBSRE o ALEMHELERE
A R A R Z SR AT B > R R A
e B 3 P o 4 o

40. Y 85 e B 45 BE H B B BOR ()

ALBR TLRT A AR B BUIR K > LT R A 58 A it

at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual R 2 BB A EBI B .
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
Group
e 3L |
2014
e Sl k2
On demand
or less than 1to$5
12 months years Total
YR AR
126/ 7 1% 54 Ham
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T BT BT
Financial liabilities included in 55 4 A ' 5 MR K
trade payables, other payables At 8 A 3K IE B
and accurals JE st £ = 4 il £ A 324,015 - 324,015
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT RS Z SRAT B 775,185 60,456 835,641
1,099,200 60,456 1,159,656
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. SV %5 Wl B 4% PIH RS B R (7))

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) W 4 e b ()

Group
L
2013
TR =4
On demand
or less than 1to5
12 months years Total
HERE AT
1218 A 1 Z54F A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT o T o T IC
Financial liabilities included in trade 355 7 B B2 5 MR
payables, other payables and accurals Al A 3R I K
JE st £ = 4 il £ A 309,794 - 309,794
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT RS Z SRAT B 785,398 74,667 860,065
1,095,192 74,667 1,169,859
Group g9

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s term loan with on demand
clause in the amount of HK$43,750,000 (2013: HK$18,000,000)
was repayable over one year in accordance with the terms of
the loan. The loan agreement contained a repayment on demand
clause giving the bank the unconditional right to call in the loan
at any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity

profile, the total amount was classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe
that these bank loans will be called in its entirety within 12
months, and they consider that these borrowings will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the
lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all

previously scheduled repayments on time.

Company

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts due to
subsidiaries of HK$429,063,000 (2013: HK$406,723,000) and
guarantees given to banks in connection with facilities granted
to subsidiaries of HK$833,329,000 (2013: HK$820,781,000)
utilised by the subsidiaries are repayable on demand.

MR-F—WEZA=Z+—H > HEBERZHK
Ko A SR ) B AT 4 BOR B R Rk 2 A R
43,750,000% 50 (= F—=4F : 18,000,000 JC)
R A AR AR AR o BRI R A VT BE R SR AR
ok > BT SR AT M 0% 1 RE B B e ZEOR A R £
oo EE e B ERBIDRVN F - ZEFEMHEC
SRR [ RER] -

i B A Ak > R R AR X S ERAT K
HEAS Y 124 3 P 2 B > WO SRR S
A I 7 42 FRCRE K Ui o P A 2 B0 AR - R
A A B REAR B T 2% 18 T 51 R R s AR A
B M A e B 2 BB IR DL - AR 4R Y
AR ILRE AL ~ N SR A 1 R A SR R A —
T 8 IR 2 301 3 3K o

4

AR R > HE A B B A W) 3K T 429,063,0009
JC (& — =4 1 406,723,0009 76) Kk F &
25 ] Jin B =2 0 A i g e SR AT PR AR s AR
833,329,000% 5t (% — =4 : 820,781,000%
JC) R HR B R E o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is
exposed to equity price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as available-for-sale investments (note 20)
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 25)
as at 31 March 2014.

If the prices of the respective listed equity investments had
been 3% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s and the Company’s available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserves would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$1,337,000 (2013: HK$2,234,000) and
HK$7,000 (2013: HK$4,000), respectively, at 31 March 2014
as a result of the changes in the fair value of the Group’s and
the Company’s certain available-for-sale investments, and the
Group’s profit after tax for the year would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$280,000 (2013: HK$360,000) as
a result of the changes in the fair value of the Group’s held-for-

trading investments.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or repurchase shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. The gearing ratio is regularly
reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end

of the reporting periods were as follows:
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40. Y 85 . B 45 BE H B B BOR ()

¥R B (50

A 0 R E AR R DA A > MR
R P I8 2 BRAT Bk Bk DA AR 24 W) 5 i A
JRE A 2 O 5 B 6 o (0 A L R ol Ry AR
JEEWIRA o« RECGEHIR > AEREARRRNT

Group
EL

2014 2013

S e

HK$°000 HK$’000

W T BT T

Interest-bearing bank borrowings R B Z R AT B 833,329 856,163
Equity attributable to equity it JB 7 A 2 ) R A

holders of the Company Fi A & W RE 2 1,328,620 1,204,725

Gearing ratio ABEARILE 63 % 71%

.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 27 June 2014.

41. W %5 E Z2 fit

AW B RS COR F-NEANA LR EE

5w L o oI 0 T 5% o

TR oW R E R e WMWK M OE R AW

171



172 Particulars of Property

Wy 3¢ W 1%

Year ended 31 March 2014 #&E =2 —MNEZA=+— HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Bk

Percentage of
attributable
interest of

Location Use Tenure the Group
74 4 1 M A
i ik Ml L E-Nipig:a
Levels 1 and 2 (west portion) Industrial Medium 100
of Four Seas Group Guangdong term lease
Headquarter Building Complex,
Yuepu South Industrial Zone,
Shantou, Guangdong Province,
The People’ s Republic of China
3 N RS A T I AH 4 100
Jo R A il BE T H S R T [
IPIES L g

A Rt e o (WS )
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